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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the owners and statutory representatives of Slovenská elektrizačná prenosová sústava, a.s.

Report from the audit of consolidated financial statements

Opinion

'l . We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial information of Slovenská elektrizaóná prenosová
sústava, a.s. and its subsidiary ("the Group'')' which comprise the consolidated statement of Íinancial position as of
31 December 2022, the consolidated income statement and consolidated statement of comprehens ve income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes..

2. ln our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly in all material respects the finarcial position of
the Group as of 31 December 2022 and its financial performance for the year then ended in accordance with
lnternational Financial Reporting Standards ("lFRS") as adopted by the EU.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with lnternational Standards on Auditing ("lSAs"). Our responsibility under
those standards is further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the consolilated financial
information section, below' We are independent of the Group in accordance with the ethical requireĺents relevant
for the audit of financial statements of Act 423ĺ2015 on statutory audit and in accordance with the changes and
amendment to and supplementoÍ Act43112002 on accounting, as amended ("the Act on Statutory Audit''), including
the Code of Ethics for Auditor, and we have fulfilled our other responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a ba$s for our audit
opinion.

Statutory RepresenŕaŕÍves' and those charged with Governance responsibility for the Consotidated
Financial Sŕaŕemenŕs

4. The Statutory Representatives are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consoliJated financial
information in accordance with the lnternationaĺ Financial Reporting Standards ("lFRs") valid for preparation of
balance sheet and income statement and for such internal controls as management determines necessary to enable
the preparatĺon of consolidated financial statements that are free from mateľial misstatement, wheth=r due to fraud
or error. ln preparing the consolidated financial information, management is responsible for assessing the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern anc the use of the
going concern basis of accounting: unless management intends to, either, liquidate the Group or to cease its
operations, or has no realistĺc alternative but to do so'

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's consolidated financial reporting process

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial lnformation

5' our responsibilĺty is to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial informa'ion as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditoťs report th.at includes our
opĺnion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audi_ conducted in
accordance with lSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can a-ise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the consolidated financĺal information.

6. As part of an audit conducted in accordance with lSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement in the consolidated financial information, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, ard obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of rot detecting a
material misstatement resuĺting from fraud is higher than that for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, and / or the overrde of internal
controls.

This is a translation of the original Slovak Auditor's Report to the accompanying
Consolidated Financial Statements translated into English language.
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Obtain an understanding of the internal controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an tpinion on the
effectiveness of the Group's internal contľo|s.
Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting principles and policies used, the reasrnableness of
accounting estimates and the related disclosures made by management.
Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the goĺng concern basis of a:countĺng and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to even:s or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. lf we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention, in our audit report, to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of the audit report. l-owever, future
events or conditĺons may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial inform.ation, including
the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial information represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves a faĺr presentation

7. We communicate with those charged wlth governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

Report on other requirements of Slovak Acts and other legal ľeguIations

Report on information presented in the annua! report

The Statutory Representatives are responsible for the information presented in the Group's consclidated annual
report, prepared in accordance with the Act on Accounting. Our above presented opinion on the consolidated
financial statements does not relate to other information presented in the consolidated annual repor'.

ln connection with the audit of the consolidated financial statements it is our responsibility to gain an understandlng
of the information presented in the consolidated annual report and assess whether such informaticn is materĺallý
ĺnconsistent with the audited consolidated financial statements or the knowledge gained during the audit of the
consolidated financial statements, or othenľise appears to be materially misstated.

As of the date of this audit report to the consolidated financial statements, the consolidated annual report has not
been made available to us.

When we obtain consolidated annual report, we will assess if the consolidated annual report includes information
required by the Act on Accounting. Based on the work performed during the audit of the consolidated financial
statements we will express an opinion, on whether:

. The information presented in the consolidated annual report for 2022is consistent with the consolidated
financial statements for that year,

. The consolidated annual report includes information required by the Act on Accounting.

ln addition, we will state, if we have identified significant misstatements in the consolidated annual re port based on
our knowledge of and situation in the Group, which we obtained during the audit of the consolicated financial
statements.

Bratislava, 29 March 2023

a

a

/-l ľ;L ',

TPA AUDIT s.r.o.
Licence SKAu No. 304

This is a translation of the original Slovak Auditor's Report to the accompanying
Consolidated Financial Statements translated into English language.
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Responsible auditor
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Slovenská elektrizačná prenosová sústava, a.s. 1

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position for the year ended 31 December 2022 prepared ir accordance
with lnternational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)as adopted by the European Union
(all amounts are in thousands of EUR unless stated otherwise)

Note
As at 31 Deceĺnber

2022 2021

ASSETS

Non-current assets
Properý' plant and equipment
lntangible assets
Assets representing rightof use
Other investment
Receivables

Gurrent assets
lnventories

Trade and other receivables
Short - term financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents
current income tax receirĺable

Total assets

EQU!TY

Share capital and reserves attributable to equity
Share capital
Legal reserve fund
Congestion income fund

Other reserves
Revaluation of fi nancial investment
Gains or losses from rerĺaluation of derirĺatives
Actuarial gains/loss
Revaluation reserve
Retained earnings
Totalequity

LIABILIT!ES

Non-current liabilities
Non-current finance lease liabilities
Non-current portion of grants and other deferred
revenues

Deferred tax Iiabiliý

Other long - term liabilities

Non-current proúsions for liabilities and charges

Current liabilities
Current bank loans
Current finance lease liabilities
Trade and other payables
Current portion of grants and other deferred revenues
Provisions for current liabilities and charges
Current income tax payable

Total liabilities

5

6

I
7

11

877 211

27 148
1 053

631

44 829

894 763
24 801

915
631

40 977
950 872 962 087

10

11

12
12

13
13

13
13

1 469
103 924
255 000
514 030

11 933

1 654
113 257

0
437 881

0

886 356 552792
1 837 228 1 514879

235 000
29 690
58 255

198 924
109

-1710
2823

83 846
394 9í 0

235 000
27 338

0

178 145
109

0

2 527
96 382

393 638
13

13

18

14

19

1 001 847 933 139

16

17

701

187 139

66 885

0

3 775

628

I 95 868

67 322

6

4 600
258 500 268 424

15
16
14
17

19

5

393
374 440
202 003

40
0

5 475
335

245 543
40 087

40

21 836
576 88ĺ 3í3 3í6
835 381 581 740

The notes on pages 5 to 74 form an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statemants



Slovenská elektrizačná prenosová sústava, a.s. 2
Consolidated lncome Statement and Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive lncome for the year ended
31 December 2022 prepared in accordance with lnternational Financĺal Reporting Standards (IFRS) as
adopted by the European Union
hll amounts are in thousands of EUR unless stated otherwise)

Year ended 3ĺ December
2022 2021

Revenues
Capitallzed costs
Cons um ables and services
Personnel costs
Depreciation and am ortization
Negative rerĺal uation difference
Other operating income
Other operating epenses
Operating profit

lnterest income
lnterest epenses
Other finance e4)ense, net
Finance income(expense), net

Profit/loss before tax

lncome taxepense

ProfiUloss for the year

Other comprehensive income

Items thatwill not be reclassified:

Retirem ent benefi t-actuarial gains

Gains or losses from reraluation of derivatirĺes
Revaluation of properý, plantand equipmentas
at1 January2021
Deferred taxfom revaluation of properý, plant
and equipment

Tota! comprehensive income

Profit/loss attributable:

Owners of the parent company

Non-controll ing interest

Profit for the year

Total comprehensive income attributable to:

Owners of the parent company

Non-controll ing interest

Total comprehensive income for the period

Note

20

2',|

22
5,6

5

24
23

454 563
1 004

-265 327
-34 56'ĺ
-68 836

0

9 707
-4 073

510 727

945
-197 782

-34 755
-71 518
-5 068
7 002

-6 253
92 477 203 298

25
25
25

1 708
-336

-256

12

-226
-1 53

1 116 -367

93 593 202931

26 -23 575 -34 328

70 0í8 í 68 603

296

-1 710

0

3 496

0

49 800

-10 527104

68 708 211 372

70 018

0

70 0í8

68 708

0

68 708

í 68 603

0

168 603

211 372

0

21',1372

The notes on pages 5 to 74 form an ĺntegral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements



Slovenská elektrlzačná prenosová sustava, a's.
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 December 2022 prepared in accordance with lntemational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as
adopted by the European Union
(all amounts are in thousands of EUR unless stated otherwise)

3

Share
capĺtal

Legal
reserve

fund

21 407

0

0

0

0

0

2352

0

29 690

Capital fund
from

shareholder
contributions

Other
funds

130 000 174 145

Congestion
income

fund

Revaluation
of íinancial
investment

í09

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

109

Actuarial
gains/loss

Gains or
losses Írom

revaluation of
derivatives

Revaluation of
property, plant

and
equipment fund

Retained Equity in
totalearnings

72 136 ?45274 751 102Balance as at 1 January 2021

Nlet profn for the year 2021

Other conprehensive inconE

Total comprehensive income for the
year 2O2'l

Dividens paid (],,lote 13)

hcrease of the Share capital from the
Capital fund from shareholder
contribution (l,lote í3)
Rofit appropriation to Legal Fund (ľ{ote

13)

Balance as at 31 December 202í

Elalance at 1 January 2022

},let proÍit for the year 2022

Other conprehensive inconE

Total comprehensíve income for the
year 2O212

Dividens paid (Mte 13)

hcrease oÍ the share capital from the
Capital fund from shareholder
contribution (Nbte 13)

Allocation to congestion inconp fund
from retained earnings
Rofit appropriation to Legal Fund (lrlote

1s)

Itotit appropriation to Statutory (l.lote 1 3)

Elalance as at 31 D cembeÍ 2022

í 05 000

0

0

0 -969

0

3 496

296

0

0

0

2aB

0

0

0

-1 7'tO

0

24246

0

-12 536

168 603

15 027

70 018

12640

0

-790U

-2352

0

168 603

42769

70 018

-t 310

0

0

0

0

0

0 0

00

0 0 0 0 0 0 3496 o 24246 183630 211372

0 0 0 0 0 o 0 o o _29335 _29335

1 30 000 0 -130 000 0

0 -5 931

0

0 5 931 0 0 0 0

235 000 273fi 0 17a Á5 0 109 2 527 0 96 382 393 638 933 í39

235 000 27 338 0 í78 í45 109 2 527 0 96 382 393 638 933't39

00

0

0000

0 0

0

0 0

n6000

0

0

0

0

0

79 034

0

-20 779

58 255

0

-1 7100

0

0

0

0

0

235 000

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

-1 710

000000
-12 536 82 6s8 68 708

00

0

0

0

0

20 7790

0 í98 924

0

0

The notes on pages 5 to 74 form an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements

83846 394910 1 00í 847



Slovenská elektrizačná prenosová sústava, a.s. 4
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 December 2022 prepared in acccrdance with
lnternational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the European Union
(all amounts are in thousands of EUR unless sŕaŕedotherwise)

Note
Yearended 3í December

2022 2021

Gash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations
lncome taxpaid
lnterest receiwd
Net cash generated from operating activities

Gash flows used in investing activities
Purchase of properý, plant and equipment and
intangible assets
Proceeds from sale of properý, plant and
equipment

Ependitures on acquisition of long - term
financĺal assets
Net cash used in investing activities

Gash flows used in financing activities
Repayment of loans
lnterest paid

lncrease in equiý
Dividends paĺd

Net cash used in financing activities

Net increase (+) / decrease (-) in cash and cash
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the
year

30

30

13

181 582
-57 250

461

385 293
-17 229

2

124793 368 066

-43 603

636

-68 281

401

00

-42967 -67 880

-5 339
-338

0

0

-31 494
-254

0

-29 335

-5 677 -61 083

76 149 239 ĺ03

12
437 881 198778

Gash and cash equivalent at the end of the year 12 514 030 437 881



Slovenská elektrizačná prenosová sústava, a.s' 5
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2022 preparec in accordance
with lnternational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the European Union
(all amounts are in thousands of EUR unless stated otherwise)

1 Genera! lnformation

Slovenská elektrizačná prenosová sústava, a.s. ("the parent company'', "sEPs") is one of the three
joint stock companies established (pursuant to the Commercial Register) in the Slovak Republic
on 21 January 2002 (date of establishment: 13 December 2001) from the process of the division of its
predecessor Slovenské elektrárne, a's.

Consolidated financial statements comprise of the financial statements of the Group and the sole
subsidiary OKTE, a s. (hereinafter "the subsidiary"), which has been controlled as at 31 December
2022 and during the year then ended 31 December 2022 (hereinafter "the Group"). OKTE, a s. is
100% subsidiary SEPS. OKTE, a.s. was established on 20 July 2010 by separatim of deviation
settlement and short-term electricity market administrator in accordance with Act No. 656/2004 Coll,
on Energy. OKTE, a.s. was included for the first time to be Consolidated Financial Statements as at
31 December 2011. Parent company SEPS prepares a Consolidated Financial Statements in
accordance with lnternational Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union
("EU").

The main activities of the Group comprise the transmission of electricity in the country of the Slovak
Republic through 220 kv,400 kV and, in a small part, through 1 í 0 kV lines and electric stations of the
transmission grid, including electricity import, export and transit. The Group is also rcsponsible for
maintaining a balanced electricity grid in the Slovak Republic and balancing the producfion and usage
of electricity during the time which is performed using the system services.

The Bohunice lnternational Decommissioning Support Fund ("BlDSF") was established in relation to
the shutdown of a power plant in Jaslovské Bohunice. The main purpose of this Fund is to finance or
to co-finance the preparation and implementation of selected projects ("authorized prcjects") related
to providing the technical assistance and/or goods, work and Services with respect :o support the
shut- down of the power plant in Jaslovské Bohunice as a result of a decision of the Slrvak Republic
to do so. The Fund supports the reconstruction, improvement and modernization cf the energy
production, transmission and distribution sectors and increases their efficiency.

The Group operates in accordance with the Act of Energy and the relevant legislation. Olfice of Network
lndustries of the Slovak Republic (hereinafter'URSO") controls particular aspects of Ure relationship
of the parent company and subsidiary and with its customers, including rates of the seruices provided.

The structure of the parent company's shareholders as at 31 December 2022 was as follows:

Absolute amount in Ownership interest
thousands of EUR and votlng rights %

Slovak Republic represented by Ministry of Fĺnance
Total

100%

100%

According to the Decree of Slovak government No. 481 dated 19 September 2012, The National
Property Fund of the Slovak Republic, transferred the shares of the parent company wĺthout
compensation to the Slovak Republic, on behalf of which acts the Ministry of finance of the Slovak
Republĺc. As a result of this, effective 2 october 2012, the Slovak Republic, on behalf of which acts the
Ministry of finance of the Slovak Republic, became the sole shareholder, who owns 10C% of shares of
the parent company as well as 100% of voting rights.

The Group is not a shareholder with an unlimited liability in other entities

235 000

23s 000

The notes on pages 5to74 form an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statenents



Slovenská elektrizačná prenosová sústava, a.s. 6
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2022 prepared in accordance
with lnternational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the European Union
(all amounts are in thousands of EUR unless stated otherwise)

The members of the parent company's statutory bodies during the year ended 31 December 2022were
as follows:

Body

Board of Directors

Supervisory Board

Executive
management

Function

Chairman
Vice Chairman
Member
Member
Member

Chairman
Vice Chairman
Vice Chairman
Vice Chairman
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member

Name

lng, Peter Dovhun
Širanec Marián, MBA
Mgr. Martin Riegel
lng. Jaroslav Vach, MBA
lng. Miroslav Janega

lng. Peter Habšuda
lng. MarcelKlimek
Michal Sokoli till 20 August 2022
lng' Marek Šimlastĺlĺ from 8 Sep,tember 2022
lng. Róbert Király
lng. Milan Jarás PhD.
lng. Vladimĺr Beňo
JUDr' Eva Murínová
lng' Marek ŠimIastĺx till 7 Septenber2022
JurajMach, MSc.
lng. Peter Dragúň
PhDr. lvan Pešout, PhD.
lng. MichalJanĺček
Ľuboš obŽut Írom 21 August 2@2

General Director
Managing Director of Operating
Managing Director of SED and
Commerce
Managĺng Director of Economics
Managing Director of Development
Capital lnvestment and
Procurement
Managing Director of lnformation
and Communication Technologies

lng. Peter Dovhun
lng' Mĺroslav Janega
lng' Silvia Čuntalová

lng. Jaroslav Vach, MBA
Mgr. Martin Riegel

Juraj Saktor

The Group employed 603 personnel on average during 2022 (2021: 589), 11 of which were
management (2021: 12).

Registered address and ldentification number

Mlynské nivy 59/A
824 84 Bratislava
Slovak Republic

ldentification number (lČo) of the parent company is: 358 291 41
Tax ldentification number (lČ DPH) of the parent company ĺs: SK 202026'1342

Registered address of the subsidlary company

OKTE, a. s.
Mlynské nivy 48
821 09 Bratislava
Slovak Republic

The notes on pages 5 to 74 form an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Staterrents



Slovenská elektrizačná prenosová sústava, a.s. 7
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2022 prepared in accordance
with lnternational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the European Union
(all amounts are in thousands of EUR unless stated otherwise)

2 Summary of signlficant accounting policy

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these Financial Statem=nts are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented unless othenľise
stated.

2.1. Basis for preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Legal reasons for preparing the Financial Statements:
The Group's Financial Statements at 31 Decembeĺ 2022 have been prepared as Consolidated
Financial Statements under $ 22 (2) of the Slovak Act No. 43112002 Coll. ("Accounthg Act") for the
accounting period from I January 2022 to 31 December 2022.

The Accounting Act requires the Group to prepare Financial Statements for the year ended 31
December 2022 in accordance with lnternational Financial Reporting Standards ("lFF:S") as adopted
by the European Union ("EU").

The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with IFRS as adopted by
the European Union. The Group applies all IFRS and interpretations issued by lnternationalAccounting
Standards Board (hereinafter "IASB') as amended by the European Union, which were in force as of
31 December2022.

These Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for
the valuation of property, plant and equipment, which were revalued using the revaluation model under
lAs 'ĺ6 and except for derivate financial instruments that are valued at fair value as at the reporting
date.

The Consolidated Financial Statements were prepared on accrual basis and under the going concern
principle.

The preparation of the Consolĺdated FinancialStatements in conformitywith lFRS req.lires in the use
of certain critical accounting estimates. lt also requires management to exercise its jr^dgement in the
process of applying the Group's accounting policies. The areas involving higher degre of judgement
or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the ConsolĺJated Financial
Statements are disclosed in Note 4.

ln connection with the war conflict in Ukraine, the parent company's management has analysed the
possible effects and consequences on the Group and concluded that currently they do not have
significant adverse impact on the Group (apart from rĺsing input prices, especially fuels, energy,
materials, goods and services). The parent company's management does not anticipate a significant
threat to the going concern assumption in the near future (during the next 12 months f-om the date of
preparation of the financial statements).

The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group for the previous perĺod Were approved by the
Decision of the Ministry of Finance of the Slovak Republic made within the scope of the General
Meeting of the parent company held on 22 June 2022.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in thousands of euros ("thousands of
EUR").

2.2. Changes in the accounting policies

During the year ended 31 Decembeĺ 2022, the Group applied the following new and revised lFRS and
I FRIC interpretations:

Amendments to lAS 16 Propeŕy, Plants and Equipment - Proceeds before lntended Use
The amendments prohibit deducting from the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment any
proceeds from selling items produced before that asset is available for use, i.e. p'oceeds while

The notes on pages 5 to 74 form an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements
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bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the
manner intended by management. Consequently, an entity recognises such sales proceeds and
related costs in profit or loss. The entity measures the cost of those items in accordance with IAS 2
lnventories.

Amendments must be applied retrospectively, but only to those items of property and plant and
equipment that have been placed in theĺr desĺgnated location and are in a condition ensuring the
possibility of operation as intended by management at the beginning of the earliest acoounting period
or in a subsequent period in which the Group applies given amendments for the tirst time. The
cumulative impact of the first application of these amendments shall be reported as an adjustment to
the opening balance of retained earnĺngs (or other items of equity, as the case may be) at the
beginning of that earliest period presented (if applicable).

The amendments did not have a significant impact on the financial statements upon their initial
application.

Amendments to IAS 37 Provisions, Gontlngent Liabillties and Contingent Assels - Onerous
Gontracts - Gost of Fulfilling a Contract
The amendments specify that the cost of fulfilling a contract comprises the costs that relate directly to
the contract. Paragraph 68A clarifies that costs that relate directly to a contract consist of both the
incremental costs of fulfilling that contract and an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling
contracts.

The Group should apply these amendments to contracts for which it has not yet fulfĺlled all of its
obligations at the beginning of the accounting period in which it applies the amendmerts for the first
time (date of first application). The Group will not adjust the comparable information. lnstead, as of the
date of first applicatĺon, it shall report the cumulative impact of the fĺrst application of arnendments as
an adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings or other equity item, as the case may be.

The amendments dĺd not have a significant impact on the financial statements upn their initial
application.

Annual lmprovements to !FRS Accounting Standards 2018-2020 Gycle

Amendments to IFRS 9 Financial lnstruments
The improvements clarify that, in assessing whether the exchange of debt instrumen:s between an
existing borrower and a lender is on substantially different terms, the fees to be included along with
the discounted present value of the cash flows under the new terms include only tha fees paid or
received between the borrower and by the Lender, including fees paid or received by either the
Borrower or the Lender on behalf of the other party.

Amendments to |FRS í6 Leases
The amendments remove from lllustrative Example 13 of IFRS 16 Leases the reference to
reimbursement that the lessor will provide to the lessee for the leasehold improvemenB of the object
of the lease, as well as explanations for the accounting of these reimbursements by the lessee.

Amendments to lAS 41 Agriculture
The improvements remove the requirement to use pre-tax cash flows when valuing agri':ultural assets
at fair value. Originally, IAS 41 required a Group to use pre-tax cash flows in fair value measurement,
but did not require the use of a pre-tax dĺscount rate to discount those cash flows.

The amendments did not have a significant impact on the financial statements upcn their initial
application.

Ghange in method of presentation

The Group has changed the method of presentation revenues related to the provision oĺ deviation and
difference settlement services to net basis reporting. The Group has considered factors that indicate
that the Group is acting as an agent and therefore does not take overall control over lhe goods and

The notes on pages 5 to 74 form an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements
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services. ln connection with the change in reporting in2022, the Group also adjusted ccmparable data
for 2021; the ĺmpact on the overall consolidated comprehensive income is zero.

Year ended 3í Decembcr

2021 aÍler change in 2021 bzfore change in
method of presentation method of presentatlon

Revenues

Consum ables and Services

Note

20

21

510 727

-197 782
507 866

-194 921

2.3. Gonsolidation principles

Subsidiaries are those companies in which the Group, directly or indirectly, has an interest of more
than 50% in the voting rights or otherwise has power to exercise control over their operations; and are
included in the Consolidated Financial Statements. Subsidiaries are consolidated as oÍ the date when
the Group gained control, All receivables and payables, disposals and purchases, as well as expenses,
revenues, profits and losses on transactions withĺn the Group are elimĺnated.

All acquisitions of subsidiaries are accounted at cost. The cost of the business combination is
measured as the aggregate of the fair value (at the date of exchange) of assets given, liáilities incurred
or assumed, and equity instruments issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquire, plus
any costs directly attributable to the business combination. lf the cost of the business combination
exceeds the Group's interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
lĺabilities recognized, the difference is disclosed as goodwill.

2.4. lnvestments

lnvestments are carried at historical cost in the Consolidated Financial Statements. The historical cost
comprise the amount of cash or cash equivalents paid or the fair value of the consideration given to
acquire the investment at the time of their acquisition.

2.5. Foreign currency transaction and translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency of the Consolidated Financial Statements

ltems included in these Consolidated Financĺal Statements are presented in thousands of euro, which
is the currency of the prĺmary economic environment in which the entity operates (''the functional
currency"). The Consolidated Financial Statements are presented in thousands of euro

(ii) Transaction and balances of the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Transactions in foreign currency are translated into the functional currency using the reference
exchange rated determined and declared by the European Central Bank or National Bank of Slovakia
as at the date preceding the date of the accounting transaction or at any other day if required by special
regulatĺon' At the reporting date preceding the date, the assets and liabilities (except advance
payments made and advance payments received) are translated into the functional currency using the
reference exchange rates determined and declared by the European Central Bank or National Bank of
Slovakia as at the reporting date. The transaction in foreign currency are retranslated into the functional
currency using the exchange rate valid at the date of the accounting transaction. Foreign Exchange
gains and losses resulting from settlement of such transactions and from the translati:n at year-end
exchange rates monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognized in the
Consol idated lncome Statement.

The notes on pages 5 to 74 form an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Stateĺnents
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2.6. Property, plant and equipment

The property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation out accumulated
impairment losses, with exception to the revaluation model adopted for certain clasres of property,
plant and equipment.

(i) Gosts

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. Borrowing costs
related to the loans received, which are directly attributable to the acquisition or production of an asset,
are included in the cost of the asset.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow
to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount c,f the replaced
part is derecognized. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the lncome Statement during
the financial period in which they are incurred.

Property, plant and equipment as the date of establishment of the Group comprise assets that were
acquired as a result of the separation of Slovenské elektrárne, a.s', into three legal sntities. These
assets were transferred at their original cost with related accumulated depreciation.

The most significant part of property, plant and equipment is represented by the network. The network
mainly includes power lines, pylons and swĺtchĺng stations. Useful life of networks assets varies
between 5 and 60 years (2021: between 5 and 60 years).

(ii) Revaluation

Property, plant and equipment - initially, property, plant and equipment are evaluated at acquisition
costs. Acquisition cost includes all costs directly incurred in putting the respective fixed asset to its
intended use.

Subsequently, the land, buildings, halls, lines and structures, machinery and equipnrent and other
revalued assets reported in the balance sheet at revalued amount, which represents tl-e fair value at
the date of revaluation after deducting any subsequent accumulated depreciation ard subsequent
accumulated impairment losses. Other classes of property, plant and equipment are subsequently
evaluated at historical acquisition costs less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses.

Revaluation is carried out by an independent expert. Revaluations are performed regulaly in sufficient
intervals (at least every five years), so that the carrying amount does not differ mate'ially from the
value, which would have been reported as at the balance sheet date using fair values.

Any increase in value on the revaluatĺon of such property, plant and equipment shall re credited to
other comprehensive income and shall be accumulated in assets in equity revaluation surplus, taking
into account the amount that will possibly cancel the impairment of the same asset item reported
previously in the income statement. ln such a case, the increase in value shall be cĺedited to the
income statement in the amount of the impairment previously reported in the income s:atement, Any
impairment on the revaluation of such property, plant and equipment shall be debited lo the income
statement in the amount that exceeds the balance on the account of the surplus from the revaluation
of assets ĺn relation to the previous revaluation of that asset item. Depreciation of revalued property
items are reported as an expense in the income statement. The revaluation surplus sha I be gradually
transferred to retained earnings over the period when the asset is used. ln such a cas:, the amount
of the transferred surplus equals to the difference between the depreciation calculated from the
revalued carrying amount of the asset and the depreciation calculated from the asset's original
acquisition cost. ln the event of a sale or removal of the asset from accounting, the b'alance of the
related revaluation surplus shall be transferred to retained earnings.

The notes on pages 5 to 74 form an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements
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(ill) Depreciation and impairment of fixed assets

The depreciation of property, plant and equipment starts in the month when the property, plant and
equipment is available for use. Property, plant and equipment is depreciated in line witr the approved
depreciation plan using the straight-line method' Monthly deprecĺation charge is determined as the
difference between acquisition costs and residual value, divided by estimated useful life cf the property,
plant and equipment. The estimated useful lives of individual groups of assets are as follows:

2022 2021
Buildings, halls, networks and constructions
Machines, equipment and vehicles
Other property, plant and equipment

10-60years 1)-60years
4 - 50 years .l - 50 years

4 years 4 years

Buildings, halls and constructions include mainly switching stations, administralive buildings,
transmission lines, halls, transformers and control rooms, pylons, towers, tanks, coľnmunications,
elevated power lines.

Machines, equipment and vehicles include mainly hardware machines, tools and equipment,
vehicles, radio relay point and cables.

Land and assets under construction are not depreciated.

The residual value of an asset is the estimated amount that the Group would curredly obtain from
disposal of the asset less the estimated costs of disposal, if the assets were already of the age and in
the condĺtĺons expected at the end of their useful life. The residual value of an asset is nil or its scrap
value if the Group expects to use the assets until the end of ĺts useful life. The assets' residual values
and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date.

Expenditures to acquire the property, plant and equipment subsequent to initial recognition are
recognized as an item of property, plant and equipment only if it is probable that they wi I enhance the
future economic benefits beyond its original performance. All other expenses are recognized as repair
and maintenance costs in the period to which it is incurred.
Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the
total cost of the item is depreciated separately. The Group allocates the amount initially recognizes in
respect of an item of property, plant and equipment proportionally to its significant parts and
depreciates separately each such part.

An asset's carryĺng amount is written down to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Items that are retired or otherwise disposed of are eliminated from the Consolidatec Statement of
Financial Position, along with the correspondĺng accumulated depreciation. Gains and losses on
disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount and are recogniz+d in operating
profit.

ln accordance with IAS 36, as at the date of preparation of financial statements, an assessment of
impairment ĺndicators is made that would indicate the recoverable amount of prope1y, plant and
equipment would be less than its carrying value. ln case any indicator exists at the balance sheet date,
the recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment is estimated which is a higher of the fair
value less cost to sell and value ĺn use (ĺ.e. the present value of future cash flows). Any impairment
loss on property, plant and equipment is recognized in the income statements in the period in which
the impairment occurs. The discount rates used in calculatĺng the present value of future cash flows
comes from the position of the Group as well as from economic environment of the Slovak Republic
as at the balance sheet date. ln case the Group decides to stop the investment project or significantly
delay its scheduled termination, it considers any reduction of its value and, where apprcpriate, record
the impairment loss.

The notes on pages 5 to 74 form an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Staterrents
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2.7. lntangible assets

lntangible assets are initially measured at cost. lntangible assets are recognized if it b probable that
the future economic benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow to the Group, and the cost of the
asset can be measured reliably. After initial recognition' the ĺntangible assets are measured at cost
less accumulated amortization and any accumulated impairment losses. Borrovring costs are
capitalized and included in the cost of an asset. The Group does not have intangiDle assets with
indefinite useful lives. lntangible assets are amortized on the straight- line basis over tl'eir useful lives.

The amortization of an intangible asset starts in the month when the intangible asset is put in use.
lntangible assets are depreciated in line with the approved depreciation plan using Íe straight-line
method. Monthly deprecĺation charge is determined as the difference between acquisition costs and
residual value, divided by estimated useful life of the intangible assets.

Residual value of intangible assets is assumed to be zero unless (a)there is a commitnent by a third
party to purchase the asset at the end of its useful life, or (b) there is an active markat for the asset
and residual value can be determined by the reference to that market and it is probable that such a
market will exist at the end of the asset's useful life.

Costs associated with maintaining computer software programs are recognized as an expense as
incurred. Development costs that are directly attributable to the design and testing of dentifiable and
unique software products controlled by the Group are recognized as intangible assets when the
following criteria are met:

it is technically feasible to complete the software product so that it will be available for;
management intends to complete the software product and use or sell it;

group has an ability to use or sell the software product;
it can be demonstrated how the software product will generate probable future economic
benefits;
group has adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the dwelopment and
to use or sell the software product are available; and
the expenditure attributable to the software product during its development can be reliably
measured.

Directly attributable costs that are capitalized as part of the software product include the software
development employee costs and an appropriate portion of relevant overheads. otheĺ development
expenditures that do not meet these criteria are recognized as an expense as incurred. Development
costs previously recognized as an expense are not recognized as an asset in a subseguent period.

Computer software development costs recognized as assets are amortized over their e*imated useful
lives, which does not exceed 4 years. lntangible assets are depreciated over 4 years, easement of
access according to the conditions stated in the Contract on easement of access.

2.8. lmpairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life and intangible assets not yet in use are not subject to
amortization and are tested for impairment annually. Land, construction in progress end assets that
are subject to depreciation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be higher as a recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognized for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and value ĺn .lse.

For the purpose of assessing impaĺrment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for vĺhich there are
individually identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill
that were impaired are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date, i.e.
release of respective value adjustment.

a

a

a

o
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2.9. Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations

Non-current assets are classified as assets held for sale when their carrying amount is to be recovered
principally through a sale transaction and a sale is considered highly probable. They are stated at the
lower of carryĺng amount and fair value less cost to sell.

A discontinued operation is a component of an entity that either has been disposed of or is classified
as held for sale, and:

a) represents either a separate major line of business or a geographical area of cperations
b) is part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of business or

geographical area of operations, or
c) is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale and the disposal irvolves loss of

control.

2.10. Financialassets

The Group classifies financial assets into three valuation categories: assets subsequently measured
at amortized cost, assets subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVOCI) and assets subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL).

A financial asset is valued at amortized cost when the following two conditions are met
a) financial asset is held in a business model where there is intention to hold the financĺal asset ĺn

order to collect contractual cash flows; and
b) financial asset's contractual terms and conditions result, on specified dates, ĺn cash flows that

represent payments of principal and interest on the outstanding principal only.

A financial asset is valued at fair value through other comprehensive income when the following two
conditions are met:

a) financial asset is held in a business model, where there is intention both to collect contractual
cash flows and to sell the financial asset; and

b) financialasset's contractualterms and conditions result, on specified dates, in cash flows that
represent payments of principal and interest on the outstanding principal only.

A financial asset is valued at fair value through profit or loss, unless it is valued at anortized cost or
fair value through other comprehensive income. For certain, investments in equity instruments that
would otherwise be valued at fair value through profit or loss, an entity may' howeveĺ, when initially
recognizing them, irrevocably decide to present any subsequent changes in fair value through other
comprehensive income,

lnitial valuation:
Apart from trade receivables that do not include a significant financing component, a lnancial asset
or financial liability is initially recognized by the Group at its fair value plus or minus (f the financial
asset or financial liability is not valued at fair value through profit or loss) transaction costs attributable
to acquisition of the financial asset or issuance of the financial liability.
lf, however, the fair value of the financial asset or financial liability at initial recognition ďffers from the
transaction price, an accounting entity applies the fair-value method and recognizes the difference
between the fair value and the transaction price as a profit or loss.
lf an accounting entity uses trade date accounting in relation to the asset that is subsequently valued
at amortized cost, such an asset shall be initially recognĺzed at its fair value at the date of the
transaction.

Subsequent valuation:
After its initial recognition, an accounting entity recognizes a financial asset at: (a) amortized cost; (b)
fair value through other comprehensive income; or (c) fair value through profit or loss.

An accounting entity applies impairment requirements to financial assets that are valued at amortized
cost and to financial assets that are valued at fair value through other comprehensive income.
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Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized on trade-date - the da:e on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset,

The Group derecognizes financĺal assets when (a) the assets are redeemed or the rights to cash flows
from the assets otherwise expired or (b)the Group has transferred the rights to the cash flows from
the financial assets or entered into a qualifying pass-through arrangement while (i) also transferring
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the assets or (ii) neither transferrirB nor retaining
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership but not retaining control. Control is 'etained if the
counterparty does not have the practical ability to sell the asset in its entirety to an unrelated third
party wĺthout needing to impose additional restrictions on the sale'

Management determines the classification of its investments at inĺtial recognition.

Financial assets at fair value through consolidated profit or loss include financial assets held for trading
and financial assets designated upon initial recognition at faĺr value through income statement.
Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling or
repurchasing in the near term or to mitigate risks. This category includes derivative financial
lnstruments entered into by the Group that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge
relationships. Financial assets in this category are classified as current.

Realized and unrealized gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the "Fnancial assets
at fair value through consolidated profit or loss" are recognized in consolidated incorre statement in
which the fair value changed.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets wĺth fixed or determinable peyments that
are not quoted in an active market. They are included in current assets, except for maturities greater
than 12 months after the reporting date. These are classified as non-current assets.

Loans and receivables are disclosed as part of non-current and current financial assets, trade
receivables and cash and cash equivalents on the Consolidated Statement of Financia Position.

Loans and receivables represent trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents

2.11. Leases

a) Leases - IFRS 16

When concluding a contract, the Group assesses whether or not the contract includ=s a lease. A
contract is a lease contract or contains lease if it transfers the right to control the use ď an identified
asset for a certain period for consideration. A contract is considered as a lease by the Group if it meets
all the following requirements:

. There is certain identified asset, either explicitly or implicitly; and
r The lessee basically gets all the economic benefits resulting from the use o: the identified

asset; and
o The lessee is entitled to control the use of the identified asset.

The Group applied the new IFRS 16 standard to all contracts concluded before 1 January 2019

For the initial reporting and subsequent revaluation of a leasing contract contain ng a leasing
component, the Group shall assign the agreed consideration to each leasing component proportionally

on the basis of its value, if agreed separately.
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i. Leased asset (Group as a lessee)

The Group shall report the right to use the asset and the liability from the lease in the bginning of the
lease. The initial value of the right of use of the asset shall be set out as the sum of the initial value of
the lĺability from the lease, lease payments carried out before or on the day of comme1cement of the
lease, initial direct costs of the lessee minus any leasing stimuli received.

When determining the period of lease, the duration of the agreed lease and the option of early
termination and/or prolongation is primarily evaluated. When assessing the probability of application
of the option of prolongation and/or early termination of the lease period, the Group shall consider all
relevant facts and circumstances providing economic stimuli for the application (non-application) of
these options. The period, for which the contract can be prolonged (or the period following the option
to early terminate the contract), shall be included in the lease period only if the Grour is sufficiently
certain that the prolongation shall be applied.

The right of use of the asset shall be amortized on a straight-line basis over the lease period, from the
commencement of the lease until its termĺnation. lf the lease includes a transfer of tifle or purchase
option, the right of use of the asset shall be amortized on a straight-line basis over the period of use
of the asset. Amortization commences on the day of commencement of the lease. Assessment of any
potential impairment of the right of use of the asset shall be carried out in a manne' similar to the
assessment of an impairment of a real property, machinery or equĺpment.

Liability from the lease shall be first valued on the day when the leased asset is made accessible to
the lessee (day of commencement of the lease). Liabilities from the lease are initially valued in the
current value of the lease payments over the lease period not paid as at the date of the iritial valuation,
using the discount rate, which is the incremental borrowing rate of the lessee. The incremental
borrowing rate of the lessee has been determined on the basis of available financial information related
to the Group, if contract conditions change (e.9. the lease period is modified on tle basis of the
prolongation or early termination of the contract, lease payment amount changes due to a change in

index or rate used to determine the payment amount, assessment of probability of application of
purchase option changes), a revaluation of the lease liability shall be subsequently carried out. Any
subsequent revaluation of a liability from lease shall affect, among other things, the lraluation of the
right of use of the asset. lf it results in a negative value of the right of use of the asset, the residual
impact shall be reported in relation to profit/loss (the value of the resulting right of use of the asset
shall be reported as zero).

The Group has applied an optional derogation and reports neither the right of use ol asset nor the
liabilĺty from lease for all types of lease contracts with the lease period up to 12 months. Costs related
to these leases are reported in financĺal accounts as operating costs evenly over lease periods.

The Group has also applied an optĺonal derogation and reports neither the right of use of asset nor
the liability from lease in relation to lease contracts where the value of the leased asset b clearly lower
than EUR 5,000. When determinĺng the estimated value of an asset, the Group assumes that it is a
new asset. lf the asset value cannot be determined reliably, the optional derogatior shall not be
applied.

ln its consolidated statement of financial position, the right of use of asset is reported by the Group in

relation to fixed assets and lĺabilities from lease are reported by the Group in relation to short-term
and long-term liabilities. Furthermore, the Group has reported transactions related to lease in its
consolidated cash flow statement as follows:

Principal payments related to liabĺlity from lease are reported as part of the cash flow
related to financial activities;
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- lnterest payments related to liability from lease are reported as part of the cash flow related
to operating activities;

- Payments of short-term lease, lease of minor assets and payments of variable parts of
lease not included in the valuation of liabilities from lease are reported as part of the cash
flow related to operating activities.

b) Leases - IAS 17 (comparable period)

i. Leased asset (Group as a lessee)

Any lease, where the Group assumes all significant risks and benefits characteristic for the ownership
of the asset in question, is classified as financial lease' For the initĺa| recognition, leased assets are
valued using the amount equal to their fair value or the current value of the minimum lease payments,
whichever is the lower. After the initial recognition, assets are accounted for in accordance with
accounting procedures applicable to the given asset type.

Other lease type is classified as operating lease and the leased assets are not reporteJ by the Group
in the consolidated statement of financial position.

ii. Lease payments

Payment on the basis of the operating lease are reported in the consolidated profit and loss statement
on the straight-line basis over the agreed lease perĺod. Stimuli related to the lease are accounted for
as a non-separable part of the total costs of the lease throughout the lease period.

For the financial lease, minimum lease payments are divided between financial costs ard decrease in
the outstanding liability. Financial costs are allocated to each period over the duration of the lease, so
that a constant interest rate is ensured for the residual amount of the liability.

2.12. lnventories

lnventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined using weighted
average cost method, The acquisition costs include all costs associated with the aoquisition of the
inventories such as customs duties or transportation costs. Net realizable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less applicable selling costs.

2.13. Trade and other recelvables

Trade receivables are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest method, net of provision for impairment. The Group reverue recognition
policy is described in the Note 2.23.

The Group manages the risk of customers' insolvency by financial guarantees 'eceived from
customers which can be used in case the customers 'debts are not settled when becane due.

Value adjustment of trade receivables is established when there ĺs objective evidence that the Group
will be not able to collect all the amount due according to the original terms of the receivables.
Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter into bankruptcy or
financial reorganization, default or delinquency in payments are considered indicators that are trade
receivable is ĺmpaired. The amount of the value adjustment is the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the present values of the estimated future cash flow discounted by the original
effective interest rate.

IFRS I sets out a three-level model of impairment of financial assets, based on credit quality changes
since theĺr initial recognition. This model requires that a financial instrument that w.as not initially
recognized with credit-based impairment is classified at level 1 and that its credit risk is continually

The notes on pages 5 to 74 form an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements
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monitored. lf any significant increase in credit risk is detected after the initial recognitic,n, the financial
instrument is moved to level 2 but no credit-based impairment ĺs introduced yeĹ lf a Íinancial
ĺnstrument is affected by credit-based impairment, it is moved to level 3.

ln case of level I receivables, an allowance is created in the amount equal to the portbn of expected
credit losses over the lifetime of the receivable resulting from possible defaults in the following 12
months. ln case of level 2 oĺ 3 receivables, an allowance is created on the basis of expected credit
losses over the lifetime of the receivable. According to lFRS 9, future-oriented informďion have to be
taken into account when creating an allowance. Purchased or incurred financial assets affected by a
creditbased impairment are those financial assets that are impaired already at their ini:ial recognition.
ln those cases, allowance is always created based on their lifetime (level 3).

Value adjustment of trade receivables is recognized through an allowance account. lmrairment losses
and their reversals, if any, are recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive lncome
within other operating expenses or income. Trade receivables that cannot be collected are written off.
Trade receivables that were written off and are subsequently repaid by the debtors are recognized in
the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive lncome within other operating income.

2.14. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at callwith banks and other short-term
highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less. Cash and cash equivalents
are carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

2.15. Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as share capital

lncremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

2.í6. Current and deferred income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted o' substantively
enacted at the reporting date. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with
respect to sĺtuations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation ard establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax a'.rthorities.

Deferred tax is provided, using the balance sheet liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the Consolidated Financial
Statements. However, the deferred income tax is not accounted for, if it arises from initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combinatĺon that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred tax is determined using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date and are expected to apply
when the related deferred tax asset is realized or the deferred income tax liability is selled.

Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxabb profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be utilized.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures, except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by
the Group and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Dividend income is not subject to income taxes in the Slovak Republic.

The Group offsets deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities where the Group has a legally
enforceable right to set off tax assets against tax liabilities and these relate to income taxes levied by
the same taxation authority,

According to act No. 23512012 Coll, the parent company is obliged to pay special levyfrom business

The notes on pages 5 to 74 form an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Stateĺnents
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activities in regulated sectors. The levy is calculated from the profit realized according to the Slovak
Act on Accounting. Total amount of this levy is included in the item "lncome tax expense".

2.'17. Grants and contributions related to acquisition of property and equlpment

Grants and contributions are recognized at their nominal value where there is a reasmable certainty
that the grant or contribution would be received and the Group would comply wi:h all attached
conditions.
Grants and contributions relating to acquisition of property and equipment were accounted for by setting
up the grant as deferred income, which was recognized as other income over the life of related
deprecĺable asset in connection with the grant approved by EBRD for the Reconstructim - Structure 2,

Part2 an Structure 3 in KriŽovany, with the grant approved by EBRD for Lemešany - KoŠice - Moldava-
Structure 4, for reconstruction of "switching station 4001110 kV in Bystričany". The Grrup also has a
grant approved by Danube lnGrid for project, which is result of cooperation betwren the Group,
Žápadoslovenská distribuÓná, a. s. and the Hungarian distribution system operatoľ E'oN Észak-
dunántúli Äramhálózati zrt' Pcl projects are key infrastructure projects aimed at hterconnecting
European energy systems and achieving the EU's energy and climate goals.

2.18. Borrowings

Borrowings are recognized initially at fair value, net of transaction cost incurred, Eorrowings are
subsequently stated at amortized cost. The difference between the proceeds (net of transaction cost)
and the redemption value is recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensiľe lncome over
the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the lĺability for at least 12 month after the reporting date'

2.19. Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligatio'l as a result of
past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and a
reliable estimate of the amount can be made. Provisions are not recognized for future oprating losses.
Where the Group expects provisions to be reimbursed, for example under an insurance contract, the
reimbursement is recognized as an asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain.
lf there is an onerous contract presented at the Group, the present obligation according to this contract
is recognized and valued as a provision.

Where there are number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognized
even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of obligations
may be in a low value.

The amount recognized as a provision represents the best estimate of the expenditure required to
settle the present obligation at the reporting date, i.e. the amount that the Group woulc rationally pay
to settle the obligation. The estimate is determined by the judgement of the management and the
Group's lawyers. The provision represents the individual most likely outcome as the best estimate of
the liability.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre{ax-rate that reflects current market assessment of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligatĺon' The increase of the provision due to passage of time is recognizes
as interest expense.
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Slovenská elektrizačná prenosová sústava, a.s. 19
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2022 preparec in accordance
with lnternational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the European Union
(all amounts are in thousands of EUR unless stated otherwise)

2.20. Contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilities are not recognĺzed in the Consolidated Financiaĺ Statements. They are disclosed
in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements, unless the possibility of an outflow of resources
embodying the economic benefits is remote.

2.21. Tradepayables

Trade payables are recognized initially at fair vaĺue and subsequently measured at amortized cost
using effective interest method. Trade payables include the financial guarantees.

2.22. Employee benefits

Trade payables are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost
using effective interest method. Trade payables include the financial guarantees.

Pension plans

A defined plan is a pension plan that defines an amount of pension benefit that an employee will receive
on retirement, usually dependent on one or more factors such as age, years of service and
compensation. A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which the Group pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity or to the Government and wĺll have no legal or constructive
obligations to pay fuŕher contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees
the benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior periods.

Unfunded defined benefit pension plan

The Group also has a long-term pension plan, which includes one-off payments at retirement in
accordance with legal requirements and its Collective Agreement.

According to the Collective Agreement the Group is obliged, starting from year 2018,based on the
number of years in service, to pay its employees on retirement or disability the followirg multiples of
their average monthly salary:

Number of year in service

0-5 included
Over 5 - 10 included
over 10-í5 included
Over 15-20 included
Over 20

7
I

10
11
12

The minimum requirement of the Labour Code of one-month average salary payment on retirement
and disability is included in the above multiples.

Other benefits

The Group also pays the following life and work jubilee benefits:

compensation of electricity costs in amount of EUR 150 yearly to retired employees who have
worked continuously in the Group for at least three years, the Group paiJ the eligible
employees for the last tĺme in2021. With the amendment to the collective agreenent, effective
January 1,2022, this compensation contribution was cancelled.

benefĺt is in the amount of EUR 59B when the employee reaches the age of 50 and 60 (2021
577 EUR)

a

a
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The Employees of the Group expect that the Group will continue to provide such benefits and, based
on opinion of management, it is not probable that the Group would cease to provida such benefits
in the future.

The liability recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position in respect of defined benefit
pension plans is the present value of the defined obligation at the reporting date.

The defined obligation is calculated annually by independent actuaries using the Proje:ted Unit Credit
Method' The present value of the defined benefĺt obligation is determined (a) by discounting the
estimated future cash outflows using interest rates of government bonds which have terms to maturity
approximating the terms of the related pension liability and (b) the attributing the calculated present
values to the periods of service based on the plan's benefit formula.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity as
incurred. Past-service costs are recognized immediately as an expense, unless the changes to the
pension plan are conditional on the employees remaining in the service for a specified period of time
(the vesting period). Otherwise, the past-service costs are amortized on a straight-line basis over the
vesting period.

ln calculating the provision for retirement benefits as at 31 December 2020, the allocation of benefit
costs to the period during which it provides the service was calculated from the dab on which the
employee began working for the Group (prorata temporis). According to a decision p.rblished by the
IFRS Committee during 2021, service costs are allocated from the date on which the employee is
entitled to the benefit (criteria: length of service, condition of continuity, etc.). ln calculating the provision
as at 3'l December 2021, this change was fully taken into account in the calculation of provisions. The
change compared to 2020 also occurred in the compensation of costs for electricity corsumption. lt will
not be paid from 1 January 2022 who have left the Group for an old age or invalidity pension.

Defined contribution pension plans

The Group contributes to the government and private defined contribution pension plans.

The Group makes contributions to the government health, retirement benefit and accidental and
guarantee insurance and unemployment schemes at the statutory rates in force during the year based
on gross salary payments.
Throughout the year, the Group made contributions amounting to 35.2o/o (2021: 35.2yo) of gross
salaries up to a monthly salary ceiling, which is defined by the relevant law for such schemes together
with contributions by employees of a further 13.4o/o (2021: 13.4%). The cost of thes.e payments is
charged to the lncome Statement in the same period as the related salary cost.

ln addition, with respect to employees who have chosen to participate in a supplem=ntary pension
scheme, the Group makes contributions to the supplementary scheme of 60/o of the trtal of monthly
wages, excluding severance payment and payments at retirement.

Profit sharing and bonus plans

Liabilities for any employees benefits in the form of profit sharing and bonus plans are recognized as
other payables when there is no realistic alternative but no settle the liability and at least one of the
following conditions is met:

there is a formal plan and the amounts to be paid are determinable before the Consolidated
Financial Statements are authorized for issue; or

the past practice created a valid expectation of employees that they will receive a profit sharing
or other bonus and the amount can be determined before the Consolidated Financial
Statements are authorized for ĺssue
bonuses or profit sharing may be determined before the Consolidated Financial statements
are authorized for issue.

a

a

notes on pages 5 to 74 rm an integral part these Financial



Slovenská elektrizačná prenosová sústava, a.s. 21
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2022 prepared in accordance
with lnternational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the European Union
(all amounts are in thousands of EUR unless stated otherwise)

Liabilities for profit sharing and bonus plans are expected to be settled within 12 months and are
measured at the amounts expected to be paid when they are settled.

2.23. Revenue recognition

The Group recognĺzes revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable
that the future economic benefits will flow to the Group and specific criteria will be met for each of the
Group's activities as described below.

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the sale of electricity
transmission and transit and other services in the ordinary course of the Group's activties. Revenues
is shown, net of value-added tax, estimated returns, rebates and discounts.

Revenues should be posted at transaction prices at the time when the goods or services are transferred
to the customer. Any promised goods or services that are distinct shall be charged separately and
discounts or returns from the sales price must be allocated to individual items, if the price is variable
for any reason, a minimum value that is highly unlikely to be derecognized must be posted.

The revenue is recognized when the respective service is rendered.

Sales of services are recognized in the accounting period in which the services are rendered, by
reference to completion of the specific transaction assessed on the basis of the actualservice provided
as a proportĺon of the total services to be provided.

Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive the payment is establishec and inflow of
economic benefits is probable.

lnterest income is recognized in the period when it is earned on a time proportion basis using the
effective interest method,

Net revenue recognition

lf the Group acts as an agent (the person responsible for management of goods and seruices provision,
agent) and not as a principal, revenue is recognised net after deduction of relaled costs. The
management of the parent company considers following factors which indicate that the Group operates
like an agent, and therefore does not take overall control of the goods and services:

. The Group does not have the freedom to set the price for the services provided,
o The Group cannot modify the goods or provide part of the service,
o The Group cannot determine the specification of the goods,
. Reward is set as a fixed amount or percentage of the value of the consideration.

2.24. Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Group's shareholders is recognized as a liability in the Groupb Consolidated
Financial Statements in the period in which the dividends are approved by the Group's shareholders.

2.25. Hedging Accounting

The Group holds derivative financial instruments in order to hedge commodity price risks. A hedged
item is other receivable or other liability reported by the Group exposĺng it to a risk of change of fair
value. lt is formally designated as a hedged item in the respectĺve hedging relationship' lt must be
possible to reliably determine the value of a hedged item. A hedging instrument is a derivative
instrument, for which it can be expected that its fair value shall compensate changes n fair value of
the specified hedged item. The Group has determined that the following derivative irstruments are
used for hedgĺng: short-term commodity futures. Hedging derivative instruments are ini:ially valued at
the acquisition costs and the respective transaction costs are reported in the consolidated profit and
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loss statement upon their origination. Subsequently, after their first accounting, hedging derivatives
are valued at fair value and their changes are accounted in a manner described below.

Gash Flow Hedge

Changes in the fair value of a hedging instrument designated as a cash flow hedging instrument are
reported directly in equity to the extent the hedging is effective pursuant to the conditicns specified in
lFRs 9 standard. The amount reported in equĺty represents a cumulative profit or loss from the hedging
instrument since the commencement of hedge or a cumulative change in the fair value of the hedged
item from the commencement of hedge, whĺchever is lower. Profits or loss from the hedging instrument
exceeding the amount reported in equity represent ineffectiveness and are reported in the
consolidated profit and loss statement. lf hedging of an expected transaction subsequently results in
reporting of a financial asset or liability, the related profits or losses reported directl7 ĺn equity are
reclassified ĺn the consolidated profit and loss statement in the same period or in the periods during
which the newly acquired asset or liabi|ity affects profiVloss. lf the hedged expected transactĺon
subsequently results in reporting non-financial asset or non-financial liability or if the heJged expected
transaction with non-financial asset or non-financial liability becomes a mandatory obligation, to which
a fair value hedge accounting is applicable, the Group shall remove the respective anount from the
provision for cash flow hedging and include it directly in initial costs or other accounting value of the
respective asseVĺiability.

Fair Value Hedge

Fair value hedge is a hedging of the risk of a change in faĺr value of the reported asset, liability or non-
reported mandatory obligation, or an identified part of such an asset, liability or manda:ory obligation,
which can be allocated to the specific risk and can affect the Group's profiUloss. Profit cr loss from the
hedging instrument is reported in profiVloss. lf the hedged item in faĺr value hedging does not report a
mandatory obligation (or its component), cumulative change in the fair vaĺue of the heQed item, after
being established, is reported as asset or liability, and the respective profit or loss is reported in profit
or loss. lf fair value hedging ĺs connected with a mandatory obligation (or its component) to acquire
asset or liability, the initial accounting value of the asset/liability resulting from the compliance with the
mandatory obligation shall be modified to include the cumulative change in the hedged item fair value
as reported in balance sheet previously. Profit or loss from the change in value of the hedging
instrument to faĺr value is reported in profiVloss. Profit or loss from a hedged item that can be allocated
to the risk being hedged shall be reported in the consolidated profit and loss statement and the
accounting value of the hedged item shall be modified by such value as well.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group classified all existing hedging relationships as casl flow hedges.

Effectiveness of hedging is the extent, to which changes in fair value or in cash flows of the hedged
item that can be allocated to the hedged risk are compensated by changes in fair value or cash flows
of the hedging instrument. lneffectiveness of hedging is evaluated through qualitative or quantitative
analysis, depending on the extent to which the main features of the hedged item are identical with the
main features of the hedging instrument. The main causes of ineffectiveness in hedging relationships
include differences in the basis (i.e. A situation when the faĺr value or cash flows of the hedged item
depend on another variable than changes in fair value or cash flow from the hedging instrument), time
difference (i.e. the hedged item and hedging instrument are created and settled in dfferent times),
difference in quantities or nominal values, credit or other risks that can affect the change in fair value
of the hedged item or the hedging instrument.

Hedge Termination

A Group shall prospectively terminate accounting for hedge if the hedging instrument no more fulfils
criteria for hedgĺng operations (taking into account any changes of hedging ratio, if applicable)' This
include cases when the hedging instrument ceases to exist or is sold, cancelled or realized. Cumulated
profit or loss reported previously in equity shall be reclassified and reported in the consolidated profit
and loss statement for the period in which the hedged item affects the consolidated rrofit and loss
statement. Hedging relationship, which keeps fulfilling the risk management objecti'ĺes and other
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criteria for hedging operations, taking into account any changes of hedging ratio may not be
terminated,

Classification of Derivative instruments: Short-Term and Long-Term instruments

Derivative financial instruments are classified either as short-term or long{erm instruments or divided
in short-term and long-term part as follows:
o lf the Group holds the derivative instrument as economĺc hedging for more than 12 months after

the balance sheet date, the derivatives are classified as long-term ones (or divided in a long-term
and short{erm part) in compliance with the classification of the hedged item.

o Derivative financial instruments designated as effective hedging fĺnancial instruments are
classĺfied in accordance with the classification of the hedged item subject to iĹ A derivative
instrument is divided into a short-term and long-term part only if it is reliably divisible.

o Derivatĺve financial instruments held primarily for trading purposes are classified as short{erm
instruments.

2.26. New standards and lnterpretations that have not yet been applied - standards and
interpretations adopted by the European Union

The following issued new standards and interpretations were issued with the possibility of early
application and the Group did not apply them early.

Amendments to IAS I Presentation of financial statements and IFRS Practice Statement 2
Maklng Materiality Judgements

The Amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023, with
early application permitted. The amendments to IAS 1 require for companies to disclose their material
accounting policies and not their significant accounting policies.

The Group plans to apply the amendments from January'1,2023. The Group does r,ot expect the
amendments to have a significant impact on its financial statements upon their initial application.

Amendments to lAS 8 Accounting Policies, Ghanges in Accounting Estimates and Errors

The Amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 Janu.ary 2023, with
early application permitted.

The amendments introduce a definĺtion of 'accounting estimates' and include further amendments to
lAS B that clarify how to distinguish changes ĺn accounting policies from changes in estimates. The
distinction is important because changes in accounting policies are generally applied retrospectively,
whereas changes in estimates are accounted for at the time when the change occurred.

The Group plans to apply the amendments from January 1,2023. The Group does rot expect the
amendments to have a material impact on its financial statements upon their initial application.

lAS 12 lncome taxes - Deferred Tax Related to Assets and Liabilities Arising from a Single
Transaction

Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023. lt shoul,J be applied
prospectĺvely. Earlier application is allowed.

The amendments narrow the scope of the original recognition exemption (lRE) so that it does not
apply to transactions that lead to identical and compensating temporary differences As a result,
companies will be required to recognize a deferred tax asset and deferred tax liability due to temporary
differences arising from the initial recognition of a lease and a reinstatement provision, The Group
plans to apply the amendments from January 1, 2023. The Group does not expect the amendments
to have a material impact on its financial statements upon their initial application.
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2.27 Offsetting

Financial assets and liabilities are set off and the net amount is presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position only if the Group has a legal right to set off the amoun:s and intends
either to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Revenues and expenses are presented on a net basis only when permitted by the reporting standards,
or for gains and losses arising from a group of similar transactions..

2.28. New standards and interpretations that have not yet been applied - standards and
interpretations that have not yet been adopted by the European Union

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28: Sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture

European Commission has decided to postpone their adoption for indefinite period.

The amendments clarify that, in transactions with an affiliate or joint venture, any p.ofit or loss is
recognized to the extent and according to whether the sold or contributed asset represents an
enterprise, as follows:

Profit or loss is recognized in full if the transaction between the investor and its affiliate or a joint
venture involves the transfer of asset or assets that represent an enterprise iregardless of
whether it is placed in a subsidiary or not), while
Profit or loss is recognized in part if the transaction between the investor and its aftliate or a joint
venture includes assets that do not form an enterprise, even if the asset is placed in a subsidiary,

The Group does not expect these amendments to have a significant impact on the presentation of its
financial statements upon their initial application.

Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements: Glassification of Liabilitbs as Current
or Non-current

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current is now effective for annual reportirg periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2024.

Amendments only affect the presentation of liabilities in the consolidated statement of fĺnancial position.

Amendments clarify that the classification of liabilities as current or non-current should be based on
rights that are in existence at the end of the reporting period and align the wording in all affected
paragraphs to refer to the "right" to defer settlement by at least twelve months and make explicit that
only rights in place "at the end of the reporting period" should affect the classification of a liability; clarify
that classification is unaffected by expectations about whether an entity will exercise its right to defer
settlement of a liability.

The classification is not affected by management's intentions or expectations as to whďher and when
the Group will apply its right to defer settlement of the liability. The amendments also clarify what
ĺs considered settlement of a liability.

Amendments to IFRS 16 Leases: Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback

Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 'ĺ January 2024. Earlier applicatim is allowed.

Amendments affect the way a seller-lessee accounts for variable lease payments ln a sale and
leaseback transaction. The amendments introduce a new accounting model for variable payments and
will require seller-lessees to reassess and, where appropriate, reclassify sale and leaseback
transactions entered into since 2019.
The amendments confirm the following:
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o On initial recognition, the seller-lessee includes variable lease payments when it measures a lease
liability arising from a sale-and-leaseback transaction;
o After initial recognition, the seller-lessee applies the general requirements f:r subsequent

accounting of the lease liability such that it recognises no gain or loss relating to the right of use it

retains;
o Seller-lessee may adopt different approaches, which meet the new requirements for subsequent

valuation.

The amendment does not change the accounting for leases unrelated to sale and leaseback
transactions.

The Group does not expect the amendments to have a material impact on its financĺal statements upon
their initial application.

3 Financial Risk Management

3.1. Financial rlsk factors

The Group's activitĺes are exposing it to a variety of fĺnancial risks: market risk (in':luding foreign
exchange risk, interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's overall risk
management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimize
potential adverse effects on the Group's performance. The Group uses derivative financial instruments
to mitigate certain risk exposures, if necessary.

Risk management is carried out by the Group under policies approved by the Board of Directors. The
Group identifies, evaluates and hedges financial risks in cooperation with the Group's operating units.
The Board provides principles for overall risk management, as well as policies covering specific areas,
such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, use of derivative financĺal instruments and
non-derivative financĺal instruments.

(i) Market rlsk

(a) Forelgn exchange risk

The Group provides electricity transit services and auctions in which payments are denominated in
EUR. Similarly, the Group recognizes part of purchases and credit financing with payments
denominated in EUR.

The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign currency denominated monetary assets and monetary
liabilities at the reporting date are as follows:

Liabilities

31 December 3í December
2022 2021

Assets

3í December 3t December
2022 202',1

czK 1

The impact of other currencies on the Group's operations is immaterial.

Based upon the sensitivity analysis of financial assets and liabilities recognized as at
31 December2022 a 10 o/o strengthening/weakening, in the EUR againstCZK woull result in an
increase/decrease in the Group's profit by EUR 0 thousand. The Group considers fie risk is not
significant as at reporting date.

(b) Price risk

The Group is not exposed to significant price risk, as it does not invest in equities

00
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(c) Operating risks - prlces of services

The Group provides the electricity transmission of the Slovak Republic and directly associated
activities. Moreover, the Group carries out activities as organizer of spot electricity market, which also
includes the settlement of deviations, central invoicing of fees related to the operation of the electricity
system and the organization and settlement of support for electricity production from renewable
energy sources and from high-efficiency cogeneration.

Activities of the Group are subject to regulation by The Regulatory Office of Network lndustries of the
Slovak Republic (hereinafter the ,,URSO"), which in its decisions determines tariffs, prices and costs
allowed the Group. URso applies in its determĺnations procedures and formulas describe in the URSo
ordinance based on the principles established by the Regulation Committee for the regulatory period.

The year 2022 belongs to regulatory period 2017 - 2022. During this regulatory period is used the
determination of prĺces for access to the transmission system and electricity transmission based on the
price cap and tariffs for losses and system services are determined on the basis of maximum permitted
costs. The main part of cost for the providing system services are costs for support serĺices and at the
different types of the support services sets maximum prices of purchased services cr the maximum
allowable cost. Part of the cost for the providing of system services is assured by payment of fixed
prices for regulated electricity procured within the framework of the IGCC (lnternational Grid Control
Cooperation), which the Group together with operators in Czech and Hungarian transnission system

The Group acts as shipping agent within Czech, Slovak, Hungarian and Romanian electricity market
interconnection (hereinafter referred to as the "MC") in region 4MMC. ln June 2021, tfe 4MMC region
merged with the MRC region, where the Polish, German and Austrian electrici:y markets are
interconnected. Relevant revenues and costs of Group are form payments for electrbity transmitted
through the cross-border links within the interconnection of electricity markets.

The main part of the Group's revenue consists of revenues from URSO's tariffs that have been
approved and issued in its ordinances (electricity transmissĺon and reserved caprcity revenues,
revenues from tariffs for electricity losses in transmission, system services revenues and revenues
from balancing energy acquĺred within the lGCC system). Furthermore, the Group generates revenues
related to cross border electrĺcity transmission (clearing of international transfers revenues - lTC
mechanism, from auctions and revenues from electricity transmitted through cross bord=r connections
within the links to electricity markets - Market Coupling) revenues related to electrici:y on the daily
market, for which the URSO does not set prices.

The Group's costs consists mainly costs for purchase of support services needed to provide system
services, the cost of system operating, electricity purchase costs to cover losses and oun consumption,
the cost for payments related to deviations of billing subjects, the costs associated wlh cross-border
electricity transmission and other costs needed for transmission system operation and operation of the
Group.

(d) Gash flow interest rate risk

The Group repaid the last loan with a varĺable rate on 2019. ln the period from 1 January 2022to
31 December 2022, The Group does not have any loan. For this reason, the Group is not exposed to
interest rate risk in consequence of long-term loans.

The Group analyses its interest rate exposure on a dynamic basis. Various scenarios are simulated
taking into consideration refinancing, renewal of existing positions and alternative fĺnancing. operating
revenues and operating cash flows of the Group are independent, to a large extent, of lhe changes in
interest rates on the market. The Group does not have material interest - bearing assets other than
cash and cash equivalents.

(ii) Credit risk

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, derivative financial instruments and deposits with
banks and financial institution, as well as credit exposures to customers, including outstanding
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receivables. lf wholesale customers are independently rated, these ratings are used. lf there is no
independent rating, risk control assesses the credit quality of the customer, taking irto account its
financial position, past experience and other factors.

The Group has implemented individual assessment of major customers credit risk. The input
information for the assessment is payment discipline of customer, indicators 'rom Financial
Statements, available informatĺon on customer's indebtedness. Major customers incllde those with
highest purchases of services. Payment conditions are set-up according to the results of the
assessment. Average maturity of receivables upon sale of products and services is based on dates
agreed in the contracts, i.e. 3 to 30 days.

The Group is managing risk of non-payment of customers through advance payment ard guarantees.

As for the trade receivables, the Group carries out its activities with a few significant :ounterparties.
Although the receivables of the Group are generated from a few customers only, the credit risk is lĺmited
due to character of the counterparties. All the customers are strategic Slovak companies engaged
in the electricity business, most of them with an influence by the state.

The Group secures its credit risk with customers and partners operating on short-tarm electricity
market and with participants of deviation settlement based on regulation rules through received bank
guarantees or financial warranties, The Group can use them in case of customers' ĺnsclvency.

Maximum exposure related to trade and other receivables is the nominal value of trde receĺvables
adjusted by individual impairment of EUR 4 760 thousand (Note 11).

The table below shows the balances of receivables due from bank (short{erm financ al assets) and
other cash and cash equivalents at the reporting date:

December
Counterparty Rating2 2022 2021

Banks 1

Všeobecná úveroyá banka, a.s.
Tatra banka, a.s.
Českos louans ká obchodná banka, a.s
Slovenská s poritel'ňa, a.s.
Štátna pokladnica

UniCredit Bank Czech Republic and Slovakia, a. s
pobočka zahraničnej banky

UniCredit Bank Czech Republic and Slovakia, a. s.
365 Banka' a. s. (Poštová Banka, a. s.)
HypoVereinsbank
Other

Total

A2
M
A3
p2
p2

A3

A3
BB-
A2
nla

4 182
986

0

1'ĺ0

151 105
46216'0
40 062
40 447
25 527

17 18Í.

c

8€

32 38€,

72

'l3 68í
45 432

46
4 968

365 705

2 771

769 03G 437 881::
1The amount of cash and short-term deposits at banks as at 31 December 2022 arĺnunts to EUR
514 030 thousand (31 December 2021 EUR: 437 881 thousand). As at 31 December 2022, 

=ash 
and cash

equivalents are at the Group's full disposal. Short-term financial assets in the amount of EUR 255 000 thousand
as at 31 December 2022 represents deposits in banks with a commitment period of more than tľree months (31

December 2021: EUR 0). The Group has bank borrowings as at 31 Decembeĺ 2022 of EUR 5 thousand (3'1

December 202'l: EUR 5 475 thousand).
2 The Group uses the independent rating of Moody's and Standard & Poor's.

As a part of cash and cash equivalents, the Group reports bank accounts in the amount of EUR 17 861
thousand, which secure trading on the spot market and the commodity futures market in a form of
variable collateral.
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(iii) Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities, the
availability of funding through and adequate amount of committed credit facilities and the ability to close
out market positions. Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying business the Group aims to maintain
flexibility in funding by keeping committed credit lines avaĺlable.

The Group manages liquidity risk by having an option to utilĺze bank overdrafts' which should cover an
immediate shortage of cash. The Group regularly monitors its liquidity position and uses overdrafts
only in exceptional cases. The Group also uses the advantages of commercial terns between the
Group and its suppliers to secure sufficient financĺng funds to cover its needs. The maturity of supplier's
invoices is between 3 to 60 days.

The Group monitors movements of financial resources on its bank accounts on a regúar basis'

Expected cash flow is prepared as follows:

. expected future cash inflows from main operations of the Group, and
r expected future cash outflows securing operation of the Group and leading to settlement of all

liabilities of the Group, including tax payables.

A cash flow forecast is prepared monthly. lt identifies the immediate need for cash and, if funds are
available, it enables the Group to make term deposits and other investments.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Group liquidity reserve comprises un-d"awn borrowing
facility and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flow.

The table below analyses the Group's financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the
remaining period at the Statement of Financial Position to the contractual maturity date. The amounts
disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months
equal their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not significant.

Less than I
vear

Between I
and 2 years

Between 2

and 5 years
Over 5
years

At31 December2022
Bank loans
Finance lease
Trade and other payables excluding liabilities
not falling under IFRS 7
Total

At31 December2021
Bank loans
Finance lease
Trade and other payables excluding liabilities
not falling under IFRS 7
Total

5
393

365 532

0
439

0
214

0

0
48

0 0

365 930 439 214 48

5 475
335

0
200

D

334

l

0
94

238 337 0 0

244 147 200 334 94
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Less than I
year

Between I
and 2 years

Between 2
and 5 years

Over 5
years

As at 3í December 2022
Short term financial liabilities - hedging
derivative lnstrum ents
Total

2 165

2 165 0 0

As at 31 December 2021
Short term financĺal liabilities - hedging
derivative lnstrum ents
Total

48 457

48 457 0 0

Fair value of a hedging derivative does not differ from its accounting value as at 31 Becember 2022
and as at 3í December2021.

Overview of movements in liabilities from financing activities

000

000

0

0

Liabilities from financing
activities

As at 31
December 2021

Cash-flow from
financing
activities

As at 31
December 2022

Other
changes

Bank loans
Liabilities from lease
Other finance liabilities
Dividends
lnterests

5 475
963

0
0
0

-5 470
131

0
0

-338

0
0
0
0

5

338

094
0
0

0

,|

Total

(iv) Commodity risk

6 438 -5 677 338 í 099

The Parent company's exposure to commodity price change risks arises in purchasing electricity as a
result of contracts tied to electricity prices quoted on exchange and can be quantifbd through risk
factors. To mitigate the exposure to commodity price fluctuations, the parent company uses commodity
futures.
Managing processes related to commodity price change risk in the parent company are designed so
that the status and development of risks in time is monitored on ongoing basis and it is possible to
determine whether the risk level observed for various areas (e.9. from the point of viel of geography,
organization, etc.) is within the limits set out for acceptance of risk defined by the parent company's top
management. These operations are carried out in accordance with the concept of fornal control rules,
within which a strict risk limits were set. Compliance with these limits is verifĺed by the departments that
are independent on those parent company sections that carry out the transactions, while trading
posĺtions are assessed through the Value-at-Risk indicator monitored on quarterly baďs.

Electricity Commodity Derivative Sensitlvity Analysis

Sensitivity to Changes in Fair Value of Electricity

Electricity Commodity Derivatives Net Fair Value Change
10% decrease
Balance as at 31 December 2022
10% increase

Electricity Commodity Derivatives

26 374
25 170
23 966

Net Fair Value

1 204

-1204

Change
10% decrease
Balance as at 31 December 202'ĺ
10% increase

52381
48 457
44 533

3924

-3924
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Sensitivity to Changes in Market Prices of Electricity

Electricity Commodity Derivatives Net Fair Value Chanoe
10% decrease
Balance as at 3'ĺ December 2022
10% increase

Electricity Commodity Derivatives

22653
25',t70
27 687

-2 517

2 5',t7

Net Fair Value Change
10% decrease
Balance as at 31 December 2021
10% increase

35 679
48 457
45 370

-12778

-3 087

Effectivity of hedging is on the level of 100%

3.2. Capital risk management

The parent company's objectives of managing capital are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue
as a going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and
to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.
The parent company's management manages shareholders capital reported under IFRS adopted by
the European Union at 31 December 2022 in value EUR 1 001 847 thousand (31 December 2021:
EUR 933 139 thousand).

Consistent with others in the industry, the parent company' management monitors capital on the basis
of the gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as follows:

3í December
2022

31 December
2021

Total equiýand liabilities

Equiý (Note 13)

The ratio of Equiýto Total liabilities and equiý

1 837 228
I 001 847

55%

1 514 879

933 't39

62Yo

The parent company's strategy was unchanged from 2021. During2022 and 2021 the Group complied
with the externally imposed capital requirements (Note 15).

3.3. Fair value estimatlon

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities is the amount, for which the financial instrument
could be exchanged in an independent transaction involving informed and voluntarly consenting
parties, unless it is a forced liquidation or execution sale. To determine the respective fair values, the
following methods and assumptions were used:

a

a

Fair value of cash and short{erm deposits, trading receivables, trading payables ard other short-
term liabilities is approximately equal to their accounting value, basically due to the short-term
maturity of these instruments.
Long-term receivables with fixed or variable interest rate are assessed by the Group on the basis
of parameters such as interest rates, risk factors specific for the given country, individual customer
creditworthiness and the risk connected with the financed project. On the basis of such
assessment, adjustments are used in accounting to cover expected losses from sucr receivables.
As at 3'ĺ December 2022 and 31 December 2021, accounting value of receivaĽrles, after the
adjustment is deducted, does not significantly differ from the fair value of such recervables.
The fair value of quoted instruments is based on bĺd prices as at the balance sheet date. Faĺr value
of unquoted instruments, bank loans and other financial liabilities, financial leasing liabilities and
other non-financial liabilities is estimated by discounting any future cash flows using a rate that is
currently available for loans with similar conditions, credit risk and remaining maturi:y.

a
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Fair value of financial assets ĺntended for a sale is determined on the basis of marhet price quoted
on active market, if any such price is available.
Value of derivatives is determined using valuation techniques and inputs that can be observed on
the market, primarily in the form of commodity futures. Valuation techniques that are used most
often include the so-called forward valuation model.

Hierarchy of Fair Values

To determine and report fair value of financial instruments and non-financial assets, the Group uses
the following hierarchy, based on valuation method:

Level 1: Quoted prices (non-adjusted) on active markets applĺcable to the same assets/liabilities'
Level 2: Other techniques, for which all the inputs that significantly affect the fair value can be observed
on the market, either directly or indirectly.
Level 3: Techniques, for which the inputs that significantly affect the fair value are not based on
observable market data.

Fair value of financial instruments is based on inputs other than their quoted market price at the date
of preparation of the financial statements.

The carrying value less impairment provision of trade fĺnancial assets and |iabilities are assumed to
approximate their fair values.

Financial liabilities 31 December Level 1

measured at fair value 2022
Level 2 Level 3

Hedging derivatives 25170 0

Financial liabilities 31 December Level 1

measured at fair value 202'l

25',170

Level 2 Level 3

0

Hedging derivatives 48 457 0 48 457

4 Critica! accounting estimates and judgements

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future periods. The accounting
estimates due to its nature would differ from actual results realized in future period. Crlical estimates
and assumptions that bear a risk that theĺr change will cause a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the future, are described below.

(i) Regulated revenues

The Group provides the electricity transmission of the Slovak Republic and diredly associated
activities. Moreover, the Group carries out activities as organizer of spot electricity market, which also
includes the settlement of deviations, central invoicing of fees related to the operation ď the electricity
system and the organization and settlement of support for electricity production from renewable
energy sources and from high-efficiency cogeneration.

The Group's activities are regulated by The Regulatory Office of Network industries of Slovakia
(hereinafter the ,,URSo), which in its decisions determĺnes tariffs, prices, allowed costs and allowed
revenues of the Group. URSO applies in its determinations procedures and formulas described in the
URSO ordinance based on the principles established by the Regulation Committee for the regulatory
period.

The year 2022 belongs to the regulatory period 2017 - 2022. During this regulatory period is used the
determination of prices for access to the transmĺssion system and electricity transmissic'n based on the
price cap and tariffs for losses and system services are determined on the basis of maxinum permitted

0
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costs. The main part of cost for the providĺng system services are costs for support serĺices and at the
different types of the support services sets maximum prices of purchased services cr the maximum
allowable cost. Part of the cost for the providing of system services is assured by payment of fixed
prices for regulated electricity procured within the framework of the IGCC, which the Group together
wĺth operators in Czech and Hungarian transmission system use to prevent the supply of regulation
electricity ĺn opposite directions through the cross-border connections.

The Group acts as shipping agent within Czech, Slovak, Hungarian and Romanian electricity market
interconnection (hereinafter referred to as the "MC") in region 4MMC. ln June 2021, the 4MMC region
merged with the MRC region, where the Polish, German and Austrian electrici:y markets are
interconnected. Since June 2022, the Group has been part of the single daily market Flow-Based
Market Coupling project, which optimizes the daily European electricity market for 13':ountries within
the Core Capacity Calculation Region. Relevant revenues and costs of Group are form payments for
electricity transmitted through the cross-border links within the interconnection of electricity markets.

The main part of the Group's revenue consists of revenues from URSO's tariffs flat have been
approved and issued in its ordinances (electricity transmission and reserved capacity revenues,
revenues from tariffs for electricity losses in transmission, system services revenues and revenues
from balancing energy acquired within the IGCC system). Furthermore, the Group generates revenues
related to cross border electricity transmĺssion (clearing of international transfers revenues - lTC
mechanism, from auctions and revenues from electricity transmitted through cross border connections
within the links to electricity markets - Market Coupling) revenues related to electricity on the daily
market, for which the URSO does not set prices.

The Group's costs are created mainly from regulated costs for purchase of ancillary neaded to provide
system services, system operation costs, purchase of regulated electricity for loss coverage and own
consumption within the system lGcc, costs for lnternational transmissĺon and auctions and other costs
needed for transmission system operation and operation of the Group.

For more details on description related to revenues, see Note 3.1 (i) (c)

(ii) Pension benefits

The present value of the pension obligatĺons depends on a number of factors that are determined on
an actuarial basis usĺng a number of assumptions. The assumptions used in determining the net cost
(income) for pensions include the discount rate. Any changes in these assumptions will affect the
carrying amount of pension obligations.

The Group determines the appropriate discount rate at the end of each year. This is tl^e interest rate
that should be used to determine the present value of estimated future cash outflows expected to be
required to settle the pension obligations. ln determining the appropriate discount rate, the Group
considers the interest rates of high-quality corporate bonds that are denominated in the currency in
which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms to maturity approxĺmating the terms of the related
pension liability.

Other key assumptions for pension obligations are based in part on current market conditions
(Note 19).

(iii) Revaluation of property, plant and equipment

The main operating assets of the Group are assets used tor electricity transmission, in the past, the
Group valued assets at the historical acquisition costs. As at 31 December 2011 and Ä16 and 2021
the Group applied the revaluation model to fair value according to IAS 16 for property, plant and
equipment, except for the classes of assets containing vehicles, inventory and artwork. Revaluation
of property was made by an independent expert who used a net realizable value. ln case of increase
of the assets book value during revaluatĺon, the analysis of the possible impairment was performed
based on the determining value in use (present value of the current cash flows expecting from the use
of property). The result of the revaluation was an increase of the assets and related incĺease in other
comprehensive income accumulated in equĺty. Assumptions used in the revaluation mcdel are based
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on the independent expert. The final reported book values of these assets and related revaluation
differences are not necessarily the values at which these assets may have been or will be sold.

The Group also evaluated the expected remaining useful life of the property, plant and equipment
based on the expert opinion as stated above.

2022 2021

Buildings, halls, networks, constructions
Machinery, equipment and vehicles
Other non-current tangible assets

10 - 60 years
4 - 50 years

4 years

10 - 60 years
4 - 50 years

4 years

There are uncertainties regarding future economic conditions, technology changes and business
environment ĺn the sector or regulations by URSO, which may result to future possible adjustments to
the estimated revaluations and useful life of property, plant and equipment. This may significantly
change the reported amount of assets, equity and profit of the Group in the future.

(iv) lmpairment test

As at 31 December 2022, the parent company performed a revaluation of the impairment losses for
property, plant and equipment in accordance with IAS 36 on the basis of assessment of their future
use, disposal or sale and was concluded that all assets used in the regulated activities relating to the
transmission of electricity represent as a whole one cash generating unit. Based on the analysis, the
Group concluded that the assets used for regulated activities related to electricity transrnission are not
impaired.
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5 PropeÉy, plant and equlpment

Land
(revaluated)

Capital w crk
Buildings, Machinery Vehicles in progress
halls and and and other includirg

construction equipment** assets *** advances
(revaluated) (revaluated) (cost) (cost) Total

At 1 January 2021

Cost
Accumulated
depreciation and
impairrnent charges
Net book value

Year ended 31

December 2021

Opening net book value

Revaluation

Additions

Transfers

Disposals

Depreciation charges

lmpairnrent charges

Closing net book
value

At 31 December 202'l
after revaluation
Cost
Accumulated
depreciation and
impairrnent charges

Net book value

At 3í DecembeÍ 2021
in historical costs
Costs
Accumulated
depreciation and
impairment charges

Net book value

Year ended 3í
December 2022
Opening net book value

Additions

Transfers

Disposals

Depreciation charges

lmpairrnent charges
Glosing net book
value

15 989 665 405

0 -131 358

251 070

-90 243

149 532

-41 090

54 413 't 136 409

o -262691

í5 989 534 047 160 827 108 442 54 4'.t3 873 718

1s 989

0
151

0

0

0

0

54 413

0
539

-40 334

0

0

0

534 047

-7 697
23 563

32 875

-463

-21 626

0

160 827

52 429
't5 904

7 498

-980

-38 972

0

'to8 442

0
1 435

561

-71

-3267

0

873 718

44732
41 692

0

-1 514

-63 865

0

14 118 894 76316',140 560 699 ĺ96 706 't07 100

16 140

0

582 090

-21 391

560 699

201 188

-4 482

147 387

-40 287

14 118

0

960 923

-66 160

16 140 ĺ96 706 'l07 í00 14 118 894 763

8 856 767 880 567 025

0 -266 685 -329 447

28 104

-8 250

14 t10 1 385 975

0 -604 382

I 856 50í 195 237 578 19 854 í4 lí0 781 593

16 140

4 197

0

0

0

0

560 699

20 7',17

3 385

-210

-22 558
0

196 706

4260
6 879

-4

-34 624

0

107 100

477

764
-1

-4243
0

14 118

14 137

-11 028

0

0

0

894 763

44 088

0

-215

-61 425

0

20 337 562 033 173 217 í04 097 17 527 877 211
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Land
(revaluated)

Buildings,
halls and

construction
(revaluated)

Machinery
and

equlpment*
(revaluated)

Vehicles and
other assets* (cost)

Capital work
ln progress

including
advances

(cost) Total

At 31 December 2022
after revaluation
Costs
Accumulated
depreciation and
irÍpairrnent charges
Net book value

20 337

0

605 864

-43 831

208 898

-35 68í

147 992

-43 895

't7 52? 1 000 618

-'t23 407D

20 337 562 033 173 217 í04 097 17 527 877 211

At 31 December 2022
]n hlstorical costs
Costs
Accumulated
depreciation and
iÍÍpairrnent charges
Net book value

't3 053

0

790 663

-283 539

55',1 477

-335 448

36 765

-11 445

17 52ô 1 409 484

-630 432D

13 053 so7 124 2',t6029 25320 17 528 779 052

** lncludes lT equipment belonging to switchyards that was revalued.
*** lncludes inventory, other fixed tangible assets, works of art and collections and lT not belonging to switchyards.

The first revaluation of property, buildings, halls, lines and structures took place on 1 January 2011. As
at 1 January 2016 and as at 1 January 2021 an independent expert who is in no way related to the
Group performed update of the revaluation of land, buildings, halls, lines and structur€s, machinery
and equĺpment and other revalued assets on the basis of observed state and dďermination of
replacement costs of assets, with reference to records of current market transactions for similar
property items and methodology for estimating net realizable value. Net realizable val-les are based
on current purchase prices at which assets could be acquired as new and the estiľnated residual
values, which are based on current acquisition costs of the assets, useful life and age of existing assets
(net realizable value less depreciation methodology).

The Group updated the revaluation as at I January 2021 . The revaluation resulted in increase of the
accounting value of property, plant and equipment by EUR 44732 thousand,(of which an increase in

comprehensive income by EUR 49 800 thousand and a decrease in operaling profit by
EUR 5 068 thousand) increase of the deferred tax liability by EUR 9 394 thousand, decrease of profits
by EUR 3 412 thousand and increase of revaluation gains in other comprehensive incom= accumulated
as a revaluation surplus within equity in the amount of EUR 39 342 thousand after taking the effect of
deferred taxes into account.

Revaluation of assets to fair Value Was peŕormed by an independent expert using a net realizable
value; he also assessed the useful life of each asset item. The revaluation resulted in a reduction of
annual depreciation by EUR 11 694 thousand in202l compared to the previous accounting period.

This valuation is in accordance with lnternational Valuation Standards. The Group recorded a
revaluation update on 1 January 2021.

As at 31 December 2022, lhe Group reviewed all internal and external impairment irdicators. The
Group did not identify such indicators that would require performing of impairĺnent test as
at 31 December 2022.

As at 31 December 2022, lhe most significant items within property, plant and equipnent represent:
substations and administrative buildings in revalued net book value of EUR 408 291 thousand,
in historical net book value of EUR 352 288 thousand (31 December 2021: revalued ne: book value of
EUR 436 282 thousand, historical net book value of EUR 369 344 thousand); transmission lines
at revalued net book value of EUR 395 304 thousand, in historical net book value of

The notes on pages 5 to 74 form an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements



Non-current assets under construction consists mainly of EUR 3154 thousand fora backup data
centre in Podunajské Biskupice (31 December 2021: EUR 3 049 thousand), EUR 2 2']3 thousand for
2x400kV line Bystričany - Horná Ždana (31 December 2021: EUR 2 247 thousard), EUR 1 564
thousand for the 4001110 kV substation in Senica (31 December 2021: EUR 1 320 thousand), EUR
1 035 thousand for changing the connection Fortischem, a. s. to ES Bystričany (31 Eecember 2021:
EUR 343 thousand), EUR 1 440 thousand for central hyper convergent infrastructure (31 December
2021: EUR 0), EUR 0 for upgrade of equipment in RlS Horná Ždaňa (31 December 2021: EUR 68
thousand), EUR 0 for optimizing and increasing security (3'ĺ December 2021: EUR 'ĺ 734 thousand)'
These assets are not available for use at the reporting date.
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EUR 362 987 thousand (31 December 202'l: revalued net book value of EUR 389 554 thousand,
in historical net book value of EUR 353 602 thousand).

ln2022, borrowing costs are capitalized in accordance with accounting policies of the G.oup, borrowing
costs EUR 0 (2021: EUR 0) as a part of the acquisition cost of non-current assets. The effective interest
rate related to capitalization as at 31 December 2022 amounted 0o/o p.a. (31 December 2021: 1,27o/o
p.a.).

The following table includes property leased by the Group as lessors under orerating lease
agreements:

Plant,
Land, buildings machlnery
and structures and equipment Total

As at31 December2022
Cost
Accum ulated depreciation
Net ralue as at 31 December 2022

As at31 December2022
Historical acquĺsition cost
Accum ulated depreciation h istorical
Historical net book ralue as at 3í Decem ber 2022

As at31 December202'1
Cost
Accum ulated depreciation
Net value as at 31 December 202'ĺ

As at31 December2021

Historical acquisition cost

Accum ulated depreciation historical

17 781
-1 442

0

0

17 781
-1 442

ĺ6 339 0 í6 339

24 566
-8 581

0

0

0 í5985

24 566
-8 581

'17 738
-724

í5 985

17 738
-724

0

0

17 014 0 17 014

24 513

-7 91',1

0

0

24 513

-7 911

Historical net book ralue as at 31 Decem ber 2021 í6 602 0 í6 602

The Group also leases optic fibres and circuits. The value of such fibres and circuits cannot be
reasonably estimated, as they are part of other assets that are used by the Group.
There are no restrictions of ownership relating to property, plant and equipment otl-er than those
disclosed in these Notes to the Financial Statements. No property, plant and equiprnent has been
pledged.

The notes on pages 5 to 74 form an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statenents
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Type and amount of insurance of non-current antangible and tangible assets

The Group has insured its assets against the following risks:

Insured object Type ofinsurance

Amount
insured as at 3í
Dec2022 and
202í in ths.

EUR

Name of the insurance company

Buildings, halls
and
constructions

Damage or total loss
(natural disaster)

Machines, tools
and equipment,
vehicles without
car licence Damage or total loss
plates, (natural disaster)
transformers,
RRB - radio relay
point, cables

Elevated line
Damage or total loss
(natural disaster)

Office equipment Damage or total loss
(natural disaster)

217 370

Lead insurer: Allianz - Slovenská poisťovňa, a.s
(Co-insurance: Kooperativa poisťovňa, a. s.

Vienna lnsurance Group, Colonnade lnsurance
S.A., GeneraliPoisťovňa, a. s.)

6',13 424

Lead insurer: Allianz - Slovenska poisťovňa, a.s.
(Co-insurance: Kooperativa poisťovňa, a. s.

Vienna lnsurance Group, Colonrade lnsurance
S.A., Generali Poisťovňa, a' s.)

73'1 368

Lead insurer: Allianz - Slovenska poisťovňa, a.s.
(Co-insurance: Kooperativa poisťovňa, a. s.

Vienna lnsurance Group, Colonrade lnsurance
S.A., Generali Poisťovňa, a. s.)

I 775

Lead insurer:Allianz - Slovenská poisťovňa, a.s
(Co-insurance: Kooperativa poisťovňa, a. s.

Vienna lnsurance Group, Colonnade lnsurance
S.A., Generali Poisťovňa, a' s.)

1 331

Lead insurer: Allianz - Slovenská poisťovňa, a.s.
(Co-insurance: Kooperativa poisťovňa, a. s.

Vienna lnsurance Group, Colonnade lnsurance
S'A., Generali Poisťovňa, a. s.)

93746

Lead insurer: Allianz - SlovenskÉ poisťovňa, a.s.
(Co-insurance: Kooperativa pc.isťovňa, a. s.

Vienna lnsurance Group, Colonnade lnsurance
S.A., Generali Poisťovňa' a' s.)

Lead insurer: Allianz - Slovenské poisťovňa, a.s.

1 5oo (Co-insurance: Kooperativa pcisťovňa, a. s.
Vienna lnsurance Group, Colonnade lnsurance

S.A., Generali Poisťovňa' a. s.)

17

Lead insurer: Allianz - Slovenská poisťovňa, a.s
(Co-insurance: Kooperativa pcisťovňa, a' s.

Vienna lnsurance Group, Colonnade lnsurance
S'A', Generali Poisťovňa' a. s.)

lnventory and
other tangible
assets

Scheduled capital
expenditures,
automatic
coverage of new
assets

lnventories

Damage or total loss
(natural disaster)

Damage or total loss
(natural disaster)

Damage or total loss
(natural disaster)

Cash, valuables,
stamps and
vouchers, lnsurance against theft,
documentary burglary and robbery,
securities and robbery during
deposited in the transport and vandalism
vaults and
mailboxes

The notes on pages 5to74 form an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statsnents
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lnsured object Type of insurance

Amount
insured as at
31 Dec2022
and2021in
ths. EUR

Name of the insurance oompany

Set of movable
tangible fixed
assets, cables,
elevated power
line

lnsurance against theft ,

burglary and robbery,
and robbery during
transport and vandalism

lnsurance against theft ,

burglary and robbery,
and robbery during
transport and vandalism

lnsurance against theft ,

burglary and robbery,
and robbery during
transport and vandalism

lnsurance against theft ,

burglary and robbery,
and robbery durĺng
transport and vandalism

lnsurance of machinery
and equipment (damage
or destruction of
machinery)

Lead insurer: Allianz - Slovenská poisťovňa, a.s.
(Co_insurance: Kooperativa pcisťovňa, a. s.

Vienna lnsurance Group, Colonnade lnsurance
S.A., Generali Poisťovňa, a' s.)

Lead insurer: Allianz - Slovenská poisťovňa, a.s.
(Co-insurance: Kooperativa pcisťovňa, a. s.

Vienna lnsurance Group, Colonnade lnsurance
S.A., Generali Poisťovňa, a. s.)

Lead insurer: Allianz - Slovenská poisťovňa, a.s
(Co-insurance: Kooperativa pcisťovňa, a. s.

Vienna lnsurance Group, Colonrrade lnsurance
S.A., Generali Poisťovňa, a. s')

Lead insurer: Allianz - Slovenská poisťovňa, a.s
(Co-insurance: Kooperativa pcisťovňa, a. s.

Vienna lnsurance Group, Colonrade lnsurance
S.A., Generali Poisťovňa, a. s.)

Lead insurer: Allianz - Slovenská poĺsťovňa, a.s.
(Co-insurance: Kooperativa pcisťovňa, a. s'

Vienna lnsurance Group, Colonrade lnsurance
S.A., Generali Poisťovňe, a. s.)

Lead insurer: Allianz - Slovenská poisťovňa, a.s.
(Co-insurance: Kooperativa po sťovňa, a. s.

Vienna lnsurance Group, Colonrade lnsurance
S.A', Generali Poisťovňa, a. s')

Lead insurer: Allianz - Slovenská poisťovňa, a.s.

(Co-insurance: Kooperativa po sťovňa, a. s.
Vienna lnsurance Group, Colonrade lnsurance

S.A., Generali Poisťovňa, a. s.)

Lead insurer: Allianz - Slovenská poisťovňa, a.s
(Co-insurance: Kooperativa po sťovňa, a. s.

Vienna Insurance Group, Colonrade lnsurance
S.A' GeneraliPoisťovňa a. s.)

332

291

166

591 146

65 000

't0 000

lnventory and
other TFA

lnventories,
construction
components

Measuring
devĺces, cables,
and laptops in
motor vehicles

Machinery,
equipment and
cables

66

Scheduled
capital
expenditures

lnsurance of
cybernetic risks

Terorism

lnsurance of machinery
and equipment (damage
or destruction of
machinery)

500

The notes on pages 5 to 74 form an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statenrents
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6 lntangible assets

Software and
other intangible

assets

lntangible
assets not yet

in use
Total

At 1 January2021
Cost
Accum ulated am ortisation

Net book value

Year ended 31 December 2021
Opening net book amount
Additions
Transfers
Disposals
Amortisation charge

Closing net book value

At3í December2021
Cost
Amortisation charge

Net book value

Year ended 31 December2022
Opening net book amount
Additions
Transfers
Disposals
Amortisation charge

Glosing net book value

At3í December2022
Cost
Accum ulated am ortisation

Net book value

85 147

-61 566

'ĺ 891

0

87 038
-6'ĺ 566

23 581 1 89ĺ 25 472

23 581

749
611

0

-7 147

í 891

5 727
-61'l

0

0

25 472
6 476

0

0

-7 147

17 794 7 007 24 801

85 744
-67 950

7 007

0

92 751
-67 950

17 794 7 007 24 801

17 794
8998
6 511

0

-6 977

7 007
326

-6 511

0

0

24 801
I 324

0

0

-6 977

26 326 822 27 148

101 056
-74 730

822 101 878
-74 7300

26 326 822 27 148

The computer software consists mainly of software SAP, Damas Energy, MONAF.CH RIS SED,
ISZO, ISOT, ISOM, ISCF and RRM. Net book value of SAP is EUR 253 thousand (3'l D=cember 2021:
EUR 389 thousand), remaining amortization period is 3 years. Net book value of Danas Energy is
EUR 3 982 thousand (31 December 2021: EUR 411 thousand), remaining amortizafion period is 4
years. Net book value of MONARCH RIS SED is EUR 4 170 thousand (31 December 2021:
EUR 7 214 thousand), remaining amortization period is 2 years. Net book value of ISZO and ISOT are
EUR 1 480 thousand (31 December 2021: 436 thousand), remaining amortization period is 4 years.

lntangible assets not yet in use include EUR 249 thousand for improvement of RIS safety (31

December 2021: EUR 249 thousand), EUR 80 thousand for update and upgrade of MARI/PICASSO
(31 December 2021: EUR 0), EUR 0 for legislative upgrade of trading system (31 December 2021:
EUR 1 887 thousand), EUR 0 for encumbrances for land under transmission line 2:<400 kV Veľký
Meder - state border with Hungary (3'l December 2021: EUR 2 349 thousand).

The notes on pages 5to74 form an integral part Consolidated Financial Stateĺlents
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lnternally generated intangible assets are immaterial.

There are no restrictions of ownershĺp relating to intangible assets and no intangible assets are
pledged.

7 Shares and other investments

2022 2021

At the beginning of the year
Additions

Disposals
At the end of the year

63ĺ
0

0

631

0

0

63í 63í

Eight providers of transmĺssion systems: Verbund - Austrian Power Grid AG, cEPs a's., Electro-
Slovenija d.o.o., E.ON Netz GmbH, MAVIR Hungarian TSO Company Ltd., PSE-Operabr S.A., SEPS
and Vattenfall Europe Transmission GmbH established, in 2008, CentralAuction Office (CAO) based
in Gute Anger 15, Freising, Germany for the purpose of introducing regional coordinated management
of network overloading. ln year 2013, the Group had share on the capital 12.5 %. On 23 May 2014
was entered in the German Register a new partner - Croatian provider HOPS d. o. c. and Group's
share on the capital was reduced to 11 .11 o/o.

The General Assembly of the Central Allocation Office GmbH (CAO) and the Capacity Allocation
Service Company.Eu S.A. (CASC.EU), two regional offices for allocating cross-borcer capacity for
electricity transmission , on 24 June 2015 approved the merger agreement and the creation of a Joint
Allocation Office (JAO).

JAO is a service company founded by twenty-five transmission system operators of the twenty two
countries - SOHertz (Germany), IPTO(Greece), Amprion (Germany), APG (Austria), 3EPS (Czech
Republic), CREOS (Luxembourg), ELES (Slovenia), ELIA (Belgium), EnerginetDK (Denmark), HOPS
(Croatia) MAV|R (Hungary), PSE (Poland), RTE (France), Slovenská elektrizačná prencsová sústava,
a.s./ SEPS, Statnett (Nonľay), Swissgrid (Swĺtzerland) TenneT (Germany), TenneT iNetherlands),
Terna (ltaly), TransnetBW (Germany), Moyle (Northern lreland) and EirGrid (l'eland), EMS
Elektromreza Srbije AD (Serbia), ESO Elektroenergien Sistement Operator EAD @ulgaria) and
National Power Grid Company Transelectrica, S. A. (Romania) . lts main task is to cond-rct an annual,
monthly and daily auctions of rights to transmit electrĺcity in Europe and act as backup for the
European Market Coupling.

New allocative platform was established on 1 September 2015. Following the merger until the end of
2015, both agencies operated in parallel to ensure the unĺnterrupted implementation ď monthly and
daily auctions on all relevant borders. All acts and activities are fully moved to Luxembcurg in the first
quarter oÍ 2016. For the year 2022 are not available data about equity and profiVloss yet. The Group
does not expect that the investment is impaired.

ln June 2018, parent company became a shareholder of TSCNET Services Gmbľl (TscNET)'
TSCNET is one of the European Regional Security Coordinators (RSC) based in Mun ch, Germany.
TSCNET provides integrated services for the operators of transmission systems and their dispatching
centres in order to maintain the operational safety of the power grid.

TSCNET shareholders are also the organization's major customers. At present, the following 15
transmission system operators from eleven European countries are the organization's shareholders:
5OHertz (Germany), Amprion (Germany), APG (Austria), ČEPs (Czech Republic), ELES (Slovenia),
HOPS (Croatia), MAVIR (Hungary), PSE (Poland), SEPS (Slovakia), Swissgrid (Switzerand), TenneT
(Germany), TenneT (Netherlands), TransnetBW (Germany) and Transelectrica (Romaria). For 2022,
data on equity and profit or loss are not yet available. The Group does not expect any impairment of
the investment.

The notes on pages 5to74 form an integral part of these solidated Financial Statements
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I Assets representing the right of use

Group as lessee

The Group leases buildings, land, machinery, etc. Lease contracts are concluded for lease periods
ranging from 3 years to indefinite period.

The following table shows the overview of rĺghts of use of the leased assets accordirB to lFRS 16,
reported as part of real property, machinery and equipment:

Asatí January2022
Adjustments due to contract modifications

Additions
Depreciation

Disposals

Balance as at 3í December 2022

As at 1 January 2021
Adjustments due to contract modifications

Additions

Depreciation

Disposals

Balance as at 3í December202í

As at31 December2O22

Land, property, plant
and equipment

9ĺ5
-64

646

-433

-11

Total

915
-64

646

-433
-11

I 053 í 053

Land, property, plant
and equipment

1 098

-26

386
-506

-37

9í5 915

9 Financla! instruments by category

The reconciliation of classes of financial instruments with measurement categories under IFRS 9 is as
follows:

Total

í 098

-26

386

-506

-37

Financial assets
at fair value

through profit
and loss

Loans and
recelvables Total

Assets as per Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position
Trade receirables (before i m pairm ent provis ion )

Other receilables
Cash on bank accounts and cash in hand
Short-term bank deposits
Total

0
0
0

0

75 418
848

514 030
255 000

75 418
848

514 030
255 000

0 845 296

The notes on pages 5 to 74 form an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements
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As at 3í December 2022

Financial
liabilities at fair

value through
equity

Financial
liabilities at fair

value through
profit and loss

Other financial
liabilities-
carried a:

amortized cos: Tota!

Liabilities as per Consolidated
Statement of Financial Position
Trade and other payables
Received guarantees

Liabilities from deriwtives
Payables to emplolees
Social security
Other payables
Bank loans and Íinancial leasing
Total

Asat3í December202í

283 4',tE

68 647

c
1 568

947
13 47C
I 09S

283 415

68 647

2 165
1 568

947
13 470

1 099

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

652

0

0

0
0

2 165 0 369 í46 371 311

Financialassets at
fair value trough

profit and loss

Loans and

receivables Total

Assets as per Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position
Trade receilables (befo re i m pa i rm ent p roús ion)
Variable collateral from com modity futures

Variable collateral from s pot trades
Other receilables
Cash on bank accounts and cash in hand

Short-term bank depos its
Total

As at 31 December 202í

74 834
23392
4275
I 795

437 881

0

74 834
23392
4275
1 795

437 881

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0 542177 542177

Financial
liabilities at

fair value
through profit

and loss

Other financial

Iiabilities-

carried at

amortized cost Total

Liabilities as per Consolidated Statement ot
Financial Position
Trade and other payables
Received guarantees
Liabil ities ŕom derivative fina ncial instru m ents
Payables to employees
Social securĺty
other payĺables

Bank loans and financial leasing
Total

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

173 187

41 600
0

1 559
1 021

23 550
6 438

173 187

41 600
0

1 559
1 021

23 550
6 438

0 247 355

The notes on pages 5 to 74 form an integral part of these Consolidated Financĺal Statenents
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10 lnventories

As at 3í December

2022 2021

Advance payrnents made for inventory

Goods

Materials and spare parts

I 469 I 654

The Group has no limited right to dispose with inventory and does not use them to guarantee its

liabilities.

11 Trade and other receivables

As at 3ĺ December
2022 2021

0

330

I 139

0

0

1 654

Current receivables and prepayments

Neither past due not impaired trade receivables

Within due but impaired trade receivables

Past due but not impaired trade receivables

lndividually impaired trade receivables

Trade receivables (before provision for impairment)

Less: Provision for impairment of receivables

Trade receivables - net

VAT receivable

Claim on grant

Prepaymants

Other receivables

Variable collateral from commodity futures

Variable collateral from spot trades

Prepaid expenses and accrued income

Other receivables - net

Total trade and other receivables

70 210

0

7

5 201

73 653

0

1

1 'ĺ80

75 418

-4 760

74834

-4 085

70 658

29 537

775

5

848

0

0

2 101

33 266

70 749

6 448
817

4 741

1 795
23 392
4 275

1 040

42 508

103924 113 257

All fees related to EEX exchange trading are covered through the clearing account mďntained by the
clearing bank, namely HypoVereinsbank. This account is also used for exercising finarcial settlement
of purchase financial products at the EEX exchange. ln relation to the future contracts h question, the
parties apply exclusively financial settlement, no commodity is supplied. Financial settlement is carried
out on ongoing basis (on a daily basis), i.e. using a variable margin. Settlement is pertcrmed through
ECC (European Commodity Clearing AG) clearing centre. Losses are covered from the initialdeposit.
ln case that the level of the deposit gets under a certain amount, it must be supplemented. Variable
collateral from commodity futures and spot trades is in the total amount of EUR 0 as ď 31 December
2022 (31 December 2021 : EUR 27 667 thousand, see also Notes 17,3'1 and 3.3). As ď 31 December
2022, hedging of trading on the commodity futures market and the spot market is carried out through
bank accounts that fulfil the function of short-term hedging (Note 3.1).

The notes on pages 5 to 74 form an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements
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Long-term receivables include the amount of EUR I 079 thousand related to the refinancing of costs
of Capital construction within the Podunajské Biskupice power station incurred by Zépadoslovenská
distrĺbučná, a. s. (31 December 2021: EUR 1 079 thousand), the amount of EUR 4 ä9 thousand of
which the short-term part is EUR 0 related to the refinancing of costs of Capital construction within the
Senica power station incurred by Západoslovenská distribučná, a. s. (31 December 2Q21: EUR 4 337
thousand),the amount of EUR 1 309 thousand of which the short-term part is EUR 0 related to the
refinancing of costs for the construction in the electrĺcal station in Stupava (31 Dacember 2021:
EUR 1 369 thousand), the amount of EUR 16 230 thousand related to the refinancing of costs for the
construction in the electrical station in Vajnory (31 December 2021: EUR 16 230 thousand), from that
the short-term part of this grant amounts to EUR 775 thousand, the amount of EUR 2 125 thousand
related to the refinancing of costs of Capital construction wĺthĺn the Est Bystričan} power station
incurred by Fortischem, a. s, (31 December 2021: EUR 3 074 thousand), the amoun: of EUR 1 788
thousand, of which the short{erm part is EUR 0, related to the refinancing ď the costs of
Západoslovenská distribučná, a. s. for investment construction in the power station in KriŽovany (31
December 2021: EUR 0), the amount of EUR 2 989 thousand, of which the short-terr part is EUR 0,
si related to the refinancing of the costs of Duslo Šaľa, a. s. for investment construction in the power
station in KriŽovany (31 December 2021: EUR 0),and the amount of EUR 15 7B9 thousand related to
the Danube lnGrid grant (31 December 2021: EUR 'ĺ5 669 thousand), the shortterm part of this grant
is EUR 0. The Danube lnGrĺd project is the result of cooperation between the Company,
Západoslovenská distribučná a.s., and the Hungarian distribution system operator E.oN Eszak-
dunántúli Aramhálózati Zrt' Pcl projects are key infrastructure projects aimed at nterconnecting
European energy systems and achieving the EU's energy and climate goals.

The analysĺs of trade receivables by the remaining period to maturity is shown in the fdlowing table:

As at 3í Dccember
2022 2021

Receivables within due date
Overdue receirables
Total

70 210
5 208

73 653
1 181

75 418 74834

The analysis of trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired by their credit quality is as
follows:

As at 31 December
2022 202',|-

Slovens ké elektrárne, a.s.
Západos lovenská distribučná, a. s.

Západoslovenská energetika Energia, a' s.

Stredoslorcnská energetika, a. s.

Stredoslownská distribučná, a. s.

\Áýchodos lovgns ká energetika, a. s.

Wchodoslorcnská distribučná, a. s.

Čeps, a. s.

T/AVIR

Joint Allocation Office

Other

Neither past due nor impaired trade receivables

399
2 820
5 323
4 359

1 832
2 914
I 305

72

5 112

í8 765

27 309

620
2 886
3 238

7 092
2 048
3 630

1 176

3

21 694
0

31 266

70 210 73 653

All receivables that are neither past due nor impaired are classified as trade receivab{es. The credit
quality of receivables that are neither past due nor impaired is monitored regularly by the management
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of the parent company. Although the receivables of the Group are generated from a few customers
only, the credit risk is limited due to character of the counterparties. Most of the customeĺs are strategic
Slovak companies, most of them engaged in electricity business, with an influence by tie state.

Credit risk of participant on electricity short-term market and deviation settlement participant is covered
by received guarantee or financial warranty.

As at 31 December 2022trade receivables of EUR 7 thousand (31 December 2021: EUR 1 thousand)
were past due but not impaired. Their ageing analysis is as follows:

As at 31 December
2022 2021

I to 90 days
91 to 180 days

Total past due but not impaired trade receivables

The balance of trading receivables as at the end of period includes overdue receivables of the
accounting value of EUR 7 thousand (2021: EUR 1 thousand) for which the Group has not created
adjustments, as no significant changes in the credibility of debtors have occurred and therefore the
receivables are still deemed recoverable. The group has created an adjustment of EUF 105 thousand
to cover overdue receivables (2021: EUR 2 905 thousand) based on the expected loss from trading
receĺvables not overdue as of 31 December 2022'

As at 3'f December 2022, the Group recorded individually impaired trade receivables in the gross
amount of EUR 5 201 thousand (2021: EUR 1 180 thousand). As at 31 December 2022 was created
provision in the amount of EUR 4 655 thousand (2021: EUR I 180 thousand).

The ageing of these receivables is as follows

As at 31 December
2022 2021

1

0
5
2

7 1

from 180 to 360 days
over361 days

Total individually impaired receivables

670
4 s31

86
1 094

5 201 í ĺ80

The movements in the provision for impairment of trade receivables are recognized in the Consolidated
lncome Statement. Movements are presented below:

2022 2021

At the beginning of the year

Additional proúsion for receiwbles impairment
Additional proúsion for receiwbles according |FRS 9

Unused amounts released

Receiwbles written-ofi as uncollectible

At the end of the year

4 085

675
0

0

0

I 648
0

2 887

-450

0

4760 4 085

No receivables have been pledged as collateral. The Group does not have any restriltions to deal
with receivables.
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12 Gash and cash equivalents

As at 3í December
2022 2021

Cash at bank and in hand
Short-term bank depos its

403 696

110 334
352 881

85 000

5í4 030 437 881

As at 31 December 2022, cash and cash equivalents were fully available for the Groups use.

For the purposes of the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow, the cash and cash equivelents comprise
the following:

As at3í December
2022 2021

Cash and bank balances and deposits with original maturities of
less than three months 514 030 437 88',1

514 030 437 88í

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents as of 31 December 2022 are nď substantially
different from their faiľ value. The maximum exposure to credit risk is limited by the carryĺng value of
cash and cash equivalents.

The analysis by credit quality is reported in Note 3.1 (ii).

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had deposits in banks with a commitment period longer than
three months in the amount of EUR 255 000 thousand (31 December 2021: EUR 0).

13 Shareholder's Equity

As at 31 December 2022, the registered capital consisted of 235 bearer shares at a nominal value of
EUR 1 000 000. Legal reserve fund has not attained the minimum amount of mandatc,ry contribution
under Commercial Code as at 31 December 2022, due to the fact that the registered capital was
increased during the year 2021 .

The parent company has no subscribed capital that has not been entered in the Commeĺcĺal Register.

Shares are associated with equal rights.

As a sole shareholder of the parent company, the Ministry of Finance of SR decided on 17 December
2020lhat a capital fund would be created from the shareholder's contribution in the amount of EUR
í 30 000 thousand and this contribution was paid up as at 31 December 2020 in full. on 21 September
2021, capital fund from shareholder contribution in amount of EUR 130 000 thousanc was used to
increase the Parent Company's share capital.

Legal reserve fund is obligatorily created from profit of the parent company in accordance with the
Slovak Commercial Code. According to the CommercialCode, the parent company is oEliged to create
a fegal reserve fund in the amount o'f 10o/o of the share capital at the time of the incorporation of the
parent company. This amount must be increased annually by at least í0 % from net profit until the
Legal reserve fund achieves 20 o/o of the share capital' Use of this fund is restriďed under the
Commercial Code only to cover losses of the parent company and it is not a distributable reserve.
Legal reserve fund amounted to EUR 29 690 thousand as at 31 December 2022 (as at 31 December
2021: EUR 27 338 thousand).
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The Group created a congestion ĺncome fund of EUR 79 034 thousand transferred fron the retained
earnings of the previous years. Subsequently, the Group transferred EUR 20 779 thousand from the
congestĺon income fund to the statutory fund in order to secure investment activities.

Other capital reserves comprise statutory fund of EUR 198 924 thousand (2021:
EUR 178 145 thousand) and differences from revaluation of assets amounted to EUR 83 846 thousand
(31 December2021: EUR 96 382 thousand).

The statutory fund to finance future capital expenditures is used to accumulate internal funds of the
parent company generated from profit dedicated to cover future capital expenditures. The rules for the
use of funds allocated to the statutory fund for capital expenditures are governed b,y the general
financing principles of the parent company in relation to capital expenditures, and by lhe acquisition
guidelines. Funds on the statutory fund to finance capital expenditures are accumulated from amounts
allocated to the statutory fund based on the decision of General Meeting.

The movements in revaluation assets fund are presented in the table below:

2022
At the start ď the period

Revaluation surplus reclassified to retained earnings as at 31 December 2022

Deferred taxon revaluation surplus as at 31 December 2022

Deferred tax related to special levyfrom business activities in regulated sectors

At the end of the perlod

96 382

-1 6 000

3 360

104

83 846

2021

At the start of the period

Revaluation as at 1 January2021

Deferred taxto revaluation as atl January2021

Revaluation surplus reclassified to retained earnings as at 31 December 2021

Deferred taxon reraluation surplus as at3'l December2021

Deferred tax related to special levyfrom business actiýties in regulated sectors

At the end of the period

72 136

49 800

-10 458

-19 021

3 994

-69

96 382

The parent company believes that the property revaluation surplus is not immediately available for
distribution to the shareholders. Parts of the revaluation surplus are reclassified to retained earnings
by the difference between depreciation of the revaluated values and original acquisitior costs of the
property. The rest of the revaluation is reclassified into retained earnings at the sale and disposal of
the assets.

The General Meeting held on 22 June 2022 approved the Financial Statements of parent company for
2021. ln 2022 were approved dividend for 2021 in the amount of EUR 0 (rounded) per share at the
nominal value of EUR 1 000 000 (in 2021: EUR 279 381,60 rounded amount).

The profit accounting of the parent company for the year 2021 of EUR 168 603 :housand was
d istributed as follows:
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2022 pĺotit
distribution

2021 loss
settlement

Dividends paid

Appropriation to the Statutory Fund

Appropriation to the Reserve Fund
Transfer to account of Accumulated losses from preúous years

Transfer to retained earnings
Total

0

0

2 352
0

166 251

29 335

0

5 931

-90 946

23 967

-31713

The Group's loss in 2020 can clearly be identified as a deficitfrom the support system for electricity
production from OZE and VUKVET, whose subsidiary is OKTE, a. s. organizer and accountant in
accordance with Act no.25012012 Coll. on regulation in network industries, Act no' 251ĺ2012 on energy
and on amendments to certain laws and Act no. 309/2009 on the support of renewable energy sources
and highly efficient combined production of electricity and heat and on the amendment of certain laws.
The Group's profit or loss in the regulatory period is determined by the decision of the ÚRSo, which
sets the prices of the Group's regulated activities in accordance with Decree no. 1812017, which
establishes price regulation in the electric power industry and some conditions for the performance of
regulated activities in the electric power industry.

í4 Trade and other payabIes

As at 3í December
2022 2021

í68 603

Trade payables
Receiwd guarantees

Payables to employees

Socialsecuriý
Accrued personnel epenses
Liabilities from deriratires

Socialfund
Other payables

Total

283 415
68 647

1 568

947

3 739

2 165

489

13 470

173 187

41 600

1 559

1 021

4 270

0

356

23 550

374 440 245 543

The fair value of trade and other payables is not significantly different from their carrying amount.

Liabilities include the amount of EUR 1 086 thousand relating to deliveries for investment shares not
invoiced as of 31 December 2022 (31 December 202'l: EUR 1 015 thousand). The long{erm part
related to deliveries for investment shares that were not invoiced as at 31 December 2022 is in the
amount of EUR 0 thousand (31 December 2021: EUR 6).

No payables are secured by a lien or other collateral.
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The analysis of payables by the remaining maturity period is as follows:

Ast at 31 Decamber
2022 2021

Payables notyetdue
Orcrdue payables
Total

376 138
467

376 605

245 437
106

245 543

Social Fund

Appropriations to and withdrawals from the social fund during the accounting period ara shown in the
following table:

As at 3í December
2022 2021

opening balance at ĺ January
Creation

Usage
Closing balance at 3í December

í5 Bank loans and finance Iease IiabiIities

356
I 137

-1 004

323
1 122

-1 089

489 3s6

As at 3í December
2022 2021

Non-current
Long-term portion of bank loans (a)

Gurrent
Short-term portion of bank loans (a)

(a) Bank loans

The maturity of bank loans is as follows

Maturity

0

5 5 475
5 475

As at 3ĺ December
2022 2021

0

00

5

Short-term portion of bank loans

Long-term portion of bank loans
1 to 5 lears
orer 5 years
Total

5 5 475

0

0

0
0

5

The notes on pages 5 to 7 an part oí these Consolidated Financial Statements
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The fair value of current borrowing approximates theĺr carrying amount, as the impact of discounting
is not significant.

Loan from Slovenská sporitel'ňa, a' s. Was repaid early in 2021. Loan from VŠeobecná ÚVerová banka,
a. s. was repaid in 2022.

Loans from VÚB, a.s. and Slovenská sporitel'ňa, a's. include certain financial covenants related to limits
on debt ratios, interest coverage and debt to operating profit ration calculated on tl-'e basis of the
indivĺdual fĺnancial statements of the parent company' The parent company compled with these
covenants at the reporting date of these Consolidated Financial Statements.

The effective interest rates at the reporting date were as follows:
2022 2021

Bank borrowings Oo/o 1,270/o

The notes on pages 5 lo 74 form an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statenents
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Structure of bank loans as at 3't December 2022 is as follows:

Amount in EUR
31 3í

December December
2021

lnterest rate
o/op. a.

Part due in next í2
months

Partdue after 12
monthsBank/Creditor

Tatra banka, a. s. operating EUR

Všeobecná Úverová
banka, a. s.

Total

lnvesťnent EUR

x x

1,2o/o and 1,3o/o
5 475 depends on

tranche
5 475 x

Maturityĺ Gollateral

January2023

18.9.2022

x

55
0

0

0

0

0

0

5x
o
5
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16 Finance lease !iabilities

52

As at 31 December
2022 2021

Long term
Long term portion of finance lease

Short-term
Short term portion of Íinance lease

701 628
701

393
335

Balance as at 31 December

2022 2021

628

335

393

The structure of lease liabĺlities by residual maturity is provided in the following table:

Less than one year

1-5 years

More than 5 years

Total

Overview of movements of leasing liabilities during the period:

As at 3í December 2020

335

534
94

393

653
48

í 094 963

1í 53

Cost interests
lncreases (+)/ Decreases (-)

Payrnents for rents

17

301
-508

As at 3í December 2021 963

Cost interests

lncreases (+)/ Decreases (-)

Payments for rents

18

565

-452

Asat31 December2022 1 094
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17 Grants and deferred revenues

Deferred revenues include the following items:

Deferred revenues
As at Deceľnber 3í

2022 2021

EBOR grant KriŽovany - long-term portion (a)

- short-term portion (a)

EBOR grant LerreŠany - long-term portion (b)

- short-term portion (b)

EBoR grant Bystričany - long-term portion (c)

- short-term portion (c)

US Steel - long-term portion (d)

- short-term portion (d)

zu TEISE- long-term portion (e)

- short-term portion (e)

EOn - long-term portion (f)

- short-term portion (Í)

Slovenské eleKrárne, a. s. - long-term portion (g)

- short-term portion (g)

zu TENE- long-term portion (h)

- short-term portion (h)

zu TENE- long-term portion (i)

- short-term portion (i)

zu TENE- long-term portion (j)

- short-term portion (j)

Západoslovenská distribučná' a. s. - long-term portion (k)

- short-term portion (k)

Východoslovenská distribučná, a' s. - long-term portion (l)

- short-term portion (l)

|NEA Vel'ký lMeder - long-term portion (m)

- short-term portion (m)

|NEA Rimavská Sobota - long-term portion (n)

- short-term portion (n)

Západoslovenská distribučná, a. s. - Pod. Biskupice - long-term portion (o)

- short-term portion (o)

Západoslovenská distribučná, a. s. - Senica- long-term portion (p)

- short-term portion (P)

Fortischem, a. s. - long-term portion (q)

- short-term portion (q)

Derivative - long-term portion (r)

- short-term portion (r)

INEA Danube lnGrid - long-term portion (s)

- short-term portion (s)

Západoslovenská dĺstribučná, a. s. - Vajnory - long-term portion (t)

- short-term portion (t)

Západoslovenská distribučná, a. s. - KriŽovany - long-term portion (u)

- short-term portion (u)

Duslo, a. s. - Križovany - long-term portion (v)

- short-term portion (v)

Deferred income from regulated tarĺffs

- short-term portion (x)

Others - long-term portion (y)

- short-term portion (y)

Total

7 419
490

27 370
1 301

49 603
1 892
2 650

202
602
29

I 942
í01

2 216
150

654
28

1 634
65

1 869
67

3 650
120

3294
171

334
12

591

18

2864
72

4 269
0

3 160

0

0

0

15 820
17

16 230
0

1 788
0

2 989
0

35 045
196 236

'l 14ô
1 032

7 909
620

28 670
1 314

51 417
1 893
2852

202
631

29
2 044

101

2366
150

682
28

1 699
65

1 937
67

3 831

120
3 464

,t82

345
12

609
18

2 935
72

4 337
0

3 074
0

0

27 365
15 574

88
'16 230

0

0

0

0

0

44 041

6 868

't 221
893

3A9 142
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As a result of the revaluation of property, plant and equipment ĺn accordance Witn lAS 't6 as
at 1 January 2021, deferred income decreased by EUR 592 thousand.

a)
On 10 December 2003, the parent company concluded a grant contract with the European Bank for
Reconstruction and Development (EBOR), under which the EBOR undertook to provide a grant of
EUR 24 million for lPR "KriŽovany 400 kV, Reconstruction- Structure 2, Parl2 and Stru:ture 3''. The
contract became effective on 4 August 2004. The subsidy proceeds were drawn over the period of
2004-2010.

An amount of EUR 7 909 thousand (31 December 2021: EUR 8 529 thousand) was recognized
in deferred revenue related to the grant.

At the reporting date, the parent company has no executor warranties or other contingent liabilities
related to grant other than expenses connected to the project in accordance with an approved
budget and its structure.

b)
On 18 December 2007 the parent company concluded a grant contract with the European Bank for
Reconstruction and Development (EBOR), under which the EBOR undertook to provide a grant of
EUR 43.9 million for extension lPR Bošáca 400 kV' transformer station 400/11OkV Medzibrod - 2.
construction, transformer station 400/'ĺ1OkV Medzibrod _ 3. construction, power lines 2 x 400kV
Lemešany - Košice - Moldava - 4. construction. The contract became effective on 4 Juy 2008.

An amount of EUR 28 671 thousand (31 December 2021: EUR 29 984 thousand) was recognized
in deferred revenue related to the subsidy.

At the reporting date, the parent company has no executor warranties or other contingent liabilities
related to grant other than expenses connected to the project in accordance with an approved
budget and its structure.

c)
on 14 December 2010 was concluded a grant agreement between Slovenská elektrizačná a
prenosová sústava, a' s. and the European Bank for Reconstruction and Development (EBOR), in
whĺch the EBOR agreed to provide a grant of EUR 76 000 thousand. This agreement effected on 17
December 2014.The grant funds will be used to set of buildings Bystričany - transformalion 400/1 10
kV, for expansion substation in Horná Ždana and KriŽovany crossing the 400 kV KriŽovany -
Bystričany and 400 kV oslany - Horná Ždana' Grant funds were drawn tll2o2o'

The amount of EUR 51 495 thousand (31 December 2021: EUR 53 310 thousand) was recognized
in deferred revenue related to the subsidy.

At the reporting date, the parent company has no executor warranties or other contingant liabilities
related to grant other than expenses connected to the project in accordance with an approved
budget and its structure.

d)
Deferred revenues include an amount EUR 2 852 thousand (31 December 202'l:
EUR 3 054 thousand), related to investment in the substation in Košice, which remains in property
of the parent company, however, the company US Steel paid the half of the substation's acquisition
costs.

e)
Amount of EUR 631 thousand represents a co-finance provided to the parent company
from an European Commission's program EU TEN-E (Trans - European Network ) in tl're amount of
10% o'Í the value of transmission lines EK-Moldava - SS KoŠice (31 December 2021: EUR 660
thousand).

54
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Í)
Amount of EUR 2 043 thousand included in deferred revenues is related to a 100 % co financing by
company E.oN for construction field 13 in KriŽovany, (31 December 2021: EUR 2 145thousand).

s)
Amount of EUR 2 366 thousand relates to refinancing of cost of Slovenské eleh.trárne, a.s
for connecting to transmission systems EMo 3 and 4 in Vel'ký Ďur (31 December 2021
EUR 2 516 thousand).

h)
Amount of EUR 682 thousand represents co-finance provided to Group from European Commission
for the transmission line SS Košice - Lemešany (31 December 2021: EUR 710 thousand).

i)
Amount of EUR I 699 thousand represents co-finance provided from European Comm ssion for the
meshing V 409 line to the new transformer station 400/1 1OkV in Vol'a electric station (31 December
2021: EUR I 764 thousand).

i)
Amount of EUR 1 936 thousand represents co-finance provided to the parent cmrpany from
European Commission for the transmission line 400 kV Gabčíkovo - Vel'ky Ďur (31 December2021:
EUR 2 004 thousand).

k)
Amount EUR 3 770 thousand is related to the refinancing of Západoslovenská distribučná, a.s
costs for enlargement of electric station in the Stupava (31 December 202'l
EUR 3 951 thousand).

r)

Amount EUR 3 465 thousand is related to the refinancing of Východoslovenská dist_ibučná, a's'
costs for the construction of devices necessary to connect R 400/110 kV Vol'a into electric
transmission system (3í December 2021: EUR 3 646 thousand).

m)
Amount of EUR 346 thousand represents the financial contribution from INEA agency intended for
design and engineering work for the project of 2x400 kV line Vel'ký Meder - State Border of the
Slovak Republic - Hungary (31 December 2021: EUR 357 thousand).

n)
Amount of EUR 609 thousand represents the financial contribution from INEA agency intended for
design and engineering work for the project of 2x400 kV line Rĺmavská Sobota - State Border of the
Slovak Republic - Hungary (3'l December 2021: EUR 627 thousand).

o)
The amount of EUR 2 936 thousand relates to the refinancing of costs of capital constr-rction within
the Podunajské Biskupice power station incurred by Západoslovenská distribučná, a. s.
(31 December 2021: EUR 3 007 thousand),

p)
The amount of EUR 4 269 thousand relates to the refinancing of costs of capital constr'.rction within
the Senica power station incurred by Západoslovenská distribučná, a. s. (3'| December 2021: EUR
4 337 thousand).

q)
The amount of EUR 3 160 thousand relates to the refinancing of costs of capital construction within
the Est BystriČany power station incurred by Fortischem, a. s. (31 Decernber 2021:
EUR 3 074 thousand).
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r)
The parent company decided to trade at electricity exchange, namely EEX (European Energy
Exchange). The objective of these transactions is to minimize or eliminate risk, therefore they
represent hedging against a potential unfavourable change in the commodity price. Expacted future
electricity purchases by the parent company are hedged (see also Notes 11, 3.1 and 3.3).
The amount of EUR 27 365 thousand at 31 December 2021 represents hedging risk revaluation
value in relation to commodity futures. The parent company hedges cash flows related to the future
purchases of electricity and in 2022fatr value of the hedge is recorded through equity.

s)
The amount of EUR 15 837 thousand relates to the Danube lnGrid grant (as at 31 Dec=mber 2021:
EUR 15 662). The Danube lnGrid project is the result of cooperation between the parent company,
company Západoslovenská distrĺbučná, a. s. and the Hungarian distribution system operator E'oN
Eszak-dunántúli Aramhálózati zrL Pcl projects are key infrastructure projects aimed al
interconnecting European energy systems and achieving the EU's energy and climate 3oals.

0
The amount of EUR 16 230 thousand relates to the refinancing of costs of Capital construction within
the Vajnory power station incurred by Západoslovenská distribučná, a. s. (31 December 2021:
EUR 16 230).

u)
The amount of EUR 1 788 thousand relates to the refinancing of costs of Capital construction within
the KriŽovany power station incurred by Západoslovenská distribučná, a. s. (31 December2021:
EUR o).

v)
The amount of EUR 2 989 thousand relates to the refinancing of costs of Capital construction within
the KriŽovany power station incurred by Duslo Šaľa, a. s. (31 December 2021: EUR 0).

x)
ln other long-term deferred income is recognized an income in amount of EUR 35 045 thousand
representing the 2022 revenues from regulated tariffs, which according to regulatory rules and
accounting procedures, is revenue of the year ending 31 December 2024.

ln other short-term deferred income is recognized an income in amount of EUR 43236 thousand
representing lhe 2022 revenues from regulated tariffs, which according to regulatory rules and
accounting procedures, is revenue of the year ending 31 December 2023.

ln other short-term deferred income is recognized an income in amount of EUR 153 0J0 thousand
representing the revenues from regulated tariffs, which, according to regulatory rules and accounting
procedures, is revenue of the year ending 31 December 2023.

v)
ln other deferred income is recognized then amount of EUR 204 thousand (31 December 2021: EUR
215 thousand), which relates to the joint procedure agreement for connection of facilities of the
company En-lnvest, a. s. to the transmission system SR at the Moldava power station.

18 Deferred tax

Deferred taxes are calculated on temporary differences under the balance sheet liaLrility method
using a principal tax rate o'Í 21% (31 December 2021: 21%). As at 31 December 2022lax rate will
increase by additĺonal4,4o/o for temporary differences in fixed assets due to charges for regulated
subjects based on act No. 235/2012 Coll. (31 December 2021: 4,4 o/o). This levy increased the tax
rate for temporary differences, which will offset by the end of 2023 related to fixed assets only, as
the value of the levy is calculated from profit before tax calculated according to the Sbvak Act on
Accounting, not taking into consideration temporary differences.
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to'rffset current
asset against current liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same fiscal
authority.

The movements in the deferred tax assets and liabilities were as follows

At 3ĺ
December

2021

Change
recognized as (-)

expenses(+)
revenues

Accounted to
other parts of
comprehensi

ve results

At 3ĺ
December

2022
Positive reraluation of fixed
assets
Negative reraluation of fixed
assets
Receĺwbles
Non-current tangible and
intangible assets
|FRS 16
Financial investment
Retirement benefit

Provisions

Reraluation of derirates

lnterests

Possibiliýto claim unused tax
deductions
Other

Total

-26 460

-461

624
-54 106

10
_29

966

1 515

0

0

2940

7 679

3 360

-151

-453
-3 184

-95

1 961

0

-236

-1785

542

104

0

0

0

0
0

-80

0

455

0

0

0

-22996

-612

171

-57 290

I
-29

791

3 476

455

-236

I 155

I 221

1

0

-67 322 -42 479

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during previous year were as follcws:

-66 885

Ar 31
December

2020

Ghange
recognized as (-)

expenses(+)
revenues

Accounted to
other parts

of
comprehensi

ve results

At 31
December

2021

Positiw revaluation of fixed
assets
Negative revaluation of fixed
assets
Receirables
Non-current tangible and
intangible assets
|FRS 16
Financial inwstment
Retirement benefit

ProVsions
Possibiliýto claim unused tax
deductions
Other

Total

-896

606
-1 862

1

0
-157

728

0
0

-929

0

-19 927

435

18

-52 244

I
-29

2 052

787

0

5 93s

3 994

2 940

1 744

-10 527

0

0

-26 460

-461

624

-54 106

10
-29

966

1 515

2 940

7 679

0

0

0

-62 964 7 098 -11 456
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í9 Provisions for Iiabilities and charges
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Pension benefits
and other long-term

benefits (a)

Legal
claims

(b)
Others

(c) Total

At 1 January2022
Creation of proMsions

Rercrsals of provision to equiý
Provisions used
Rerersals of unused proúsion
At3í December2022

Analysis of total provisions

4 600
446

-374

-897

0

40 0

0

0

0

0

4 640
446

-374
-897

0

0

0

0

3775 40 0 3 8ĺ5

As at3í December
2022 2021

Non-current

Current
Total

(i) Post employment benefits

Analysis of total provisions

3 775

40

4 600

40

3 8í5 4640

The IFRS lnterpretation Committee published its decision in May 2021 regarding the allocation of
benefits to periods of servĺce. Until now, the benefit costs were allocated to the period during which
it provides the service was calculated from the date on which the employee began waking for the
company (prorata tem poris).

According to a decision published by the IFRS Committee during 2021, service costs are allocated
from the date on which the employee is entitled to the benefit (criteria: length of service, condition
of continuity, etc.).

ln valuation of employee benefits as at 31 December 2021, this interpretation change related to IAS
19 was fully taken into account.

The change compared lo 2O2O also occurred in the compensation of costs fcr electricity
consumptión. lt wiil not be paid from 1 January 2022 who have left the Group for an old age o}
invalidity pension.

(a) Pension benefits and other Iong-term benefits

The following amounts have been recognized with respect of the defined benefit pensbn plan and
other long-term benefits:

As at31 Decenber
2022 2021

Present ralue of unfunded retirem ent obligations
Unrecognired actuarial gains/(losses) and portion of past
service cost

Obligation in the Statement of Financial Position

3 535

0

4 289

0

3 535

The notes on pages 5 to 74 form an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements
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The amount recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive lncome are as follows:

Analysis of current provisions 2022 2021

Current service cost

Past service cost
lnterest cost
Pension (credit) / cost, included in personnel costs

Value recognized in Equity are as follows:

Analysis of total provision

446 514
-957

81

0

48

494 -362

2022 2021

Recognized actuarial gains from change in the method of
calculating pension liabilities
Totalchange recognized in equity

Movements in the present value of defined benefit obligation are

-374 -4 426

-374 -4 426

2022 2021

Presentvalue of unfunded retirement obligation at the beginning
of the year

Current service cost
lnterest cost
Benefits paid

Cancelled
Actuarial gain on changes in IAS 19
Present value of unfunded retlrement obligations at the end of
the year

(ii) Other long - term benefits fiubilees and loyalties)

4 289

446
48

-874

0

-374

I 546

514
8í

-469

-957

-4 426

3 535 4289

As at 31 December
2022 2021

Present value of unfunded obligations
Obligation in the Statement of Financial Position 240

The amounts recognized in the Consolidated income Statement are as follows:

2022

240 311
311

2021

Current service cost

Cost of past service

Recognized actuarial gains(losses )

lnterest epense
Pension (credit)/ cost included in personnel costs

30

26

-107

3

32

19

53

2

48

The notes on pages 5 to 74 form an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements
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Movements in the present value of defined benefit obligation are
2022

60

2021

Present value of unfunded retirement obligations at beginning of
the year
Current service cost
Past service cost
lnterest cost
Benefits paid

Actuarial gains(los ses )

Present value of unfunded retirement obligations at the end of
the year

311

30
26

3

-23

-107

223

32
19
2

-18

53

240 311

The prĺncipal actuarial assumptions to determine the pension liability Were as follows:

As at3ĺ Decembeĺ2022

Percentage of employees, who will terminate their
employment prior to retirement (fluctuation rate)
Epected salary increases
Discount rate

1,7 _3,1 o/o p.€. based o1 age

4,30o/o p. a.

4,14o/o p. a. | 4,24 % p.a-

As at 3í December 202í

Percentage of em ployees, who will term inate their 1 ,0 _2,6 o/o p.ä. based on age
em ployrn ent prior to retirem ent (fluctuation rate)
E>pected salaryincreases 2,75o/op.a.

Discount rate 1,060/o p. a. ; I ,42 o/o p.a.

The table below presents a sensitivity analysis related to significant assumptions as of 3ĺ December
2022, calculated using a method that extrapolates the impact on employees' pension r=lated
liabilities, a subject of reasonable change in key assumptions at the year end.

Significant assumptions Change Result Result %

Discount rate

Discount rate

Fluctuation of employees, yearly

Fluctuation of employees, yearly

Change in Remuneration

Change in Remuneration

Change in probability of death

Change in probability of death

0,50%

-0,50%

-1,00%

1,000/o

0,50%

-0,50%

-10,000/o

10,00%

3 563

3 839

3 415

4 011

3 836

3 565

3 662

3 732

-3,60/o

3,8oÄ

-7,6%

8,5%o

3,8%o

-3,6%

-0,9o/o

1,0oÄ

Expected payments or contributions to the defined benefit program in the future years in nominal
value:

31 December 2022 31 Dec'ember 202í
During the next 12 months (next annual reporting period)

From2toSyears
From 6 to '10 vears

205
2 128
3952

306

2025
3 210

Total expected pavments 6 285

The notes on pages 5to74 form an integral part these Financial
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The average duration of obligation for the defined benefit program at the end of the reporting pe-iod
is 10 years (in 2021: 1 0 years).

(b) Provision for legal claims

A provision is created for those legal claims where it is probable, at the reporting date, that an outflow
of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation ard a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The Group is involved in legalcas€s regarding
the cost reimbursement for bush cutting in the protection electricity lines zone and compensation for
easements. ln the opinion of the Group's management, after taking appropriate legd advice, the
outcome of these legal claims will not give rise to any sĺgnificant loss beyond the amounts provided.

20 Revenues

Revenues include the following

Revenues from electricity transmission and transit, deviation settlement and fees for oqanization of
daily electricity market:

2022 2021

Access to transmission grid

Covering losses
System operation

System seMces
Auctions

Deviations and regulated energy

Shipping
CBT (lTC) mechanism
Fee for connection to the transmission syatem

lmport& eport
Unplanned electriciý exchanges (Fskar)

Sale of electriciýon dailymarket
Cross-border em ergency assistance
Other regulated services
Tota I reve nues from e lectric ity tra nsm iss ion a nd tra ns it,

deviation settlement and organization of daily electricity market

Rental

Telecom m unications services
Other revenues
Total other revenues

120 516

31 479

37 790
127 147

33 338

39 014

0

I 119

837

559

7 233

36 710

I 411

554

131 921

17 600

73 253
1 30 662

37 077

23 871

79 796
I 216
1 119

368

2 BB3

0

1 352
795

453707 509 9í3

598

199

59

7',16

83

15

856 814

Total revenues 454 563 510 727

Group revenues comprise primarily revenues from tariffs determined by the Office in the respective
resolutions (revenues from energy transmission and capacity reserves, revenues frc,m losses in
energy transmission, revenues from system services and revenues for the activities of the spot
electricity market organizer). Moreover the Group generates revenues for regulateJ electricity,
revenues related to deviations related to deviations of Subject's balancing group, reverues related
to cross-border energy transmission (revenues from the settlement of cross-border transmissions
between the operators of transmission networks within the ITC mechanism, revenues from
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transmission capacity auctions and revenues from MC) and revenues related to electricity on the
daily market where the prices are not determined by the Office.

Revenues from rental comprise income from the rental of non-residential premises, rerÍal of electric
masts for various types of transmitters and antennas and rental of power lines. Fevenues for
telecommunications Services include the rental of fibre optic and Services of the nanagement
lnformation system.

Except mentioned above, the Group recognizes revenues from sale of electricity and costs from
purchased electricity on daily electricity market on net basis (As at 31 december 2021: net balance
was presented in Consumed materials and services). |n2022 Group realized revenuasfrom sale
of electricity in the total amount of EUR 1908 727 thousand (2021: EUR 705 179 thousand).
Related costs were in the amount of EUR 1 872 017 thousand (2021: EUR 743 991 thousand).

According to |FRS 'ĺ5, costs and revenues for the operation of the system are repor:ed on a net
basis' During the year 2022, transactĺons were carried out in the total amount of EUR 373 874
thousand and related costs were EUR 308 941 thousand (31 December 2021: transmtions in the
total amount of EUR 526 982 thousand and related costs were EUR 21 1 187 thousand reported in
Consumption of materials and services). As at 31 December 2022,lhese items were reduced by
remuneration for the activities of the buyer in the amount of EUR 27 242 thousard (as at 31
December 2021: EUR 249 416 thousand). Other revenues from the operation of the system, which
according to IFRS 15 are not reported in net value, are in amount of EUR g9 tl'ousand (3'l
December 2021: EUR 6 874 thousand).

According to IFRS 15, costs and revenues for the provision of the deviation settlemen: service are
reported on a net basis. During2022, related revenues in the total amount of EUR 207 nS thousand
and related costs were EUR 170741thousand (31 December 2021: transactions in the:otal amount
of EUR 109 973 thousand and related costs were EUR Bg 200 thousand reported in C.onsumption
of materials and services). Other income for deviations, which according to IFRS 15 are not reported
in net value, are in amount of EUR 2 450 thousand (31 December 2021: EUR 3 098 thousand).

According to IFRS 15, costs and revenues for the provision of the difference settlemen: service are
reported on a net basis. During2022, related revenues in the total amount of EUR 43 319 thousand
and related costs were EUR 43 319 thousand (31 December 2021: revenues and related expenses
were EUR 40 270 thousand).
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21 Gonsumed materials and services

Consumed materials and services included the following

2022

63

2021
Shipping
Sale of electriciýon dailymarket
Syatem IGCC
Consumption of material, energyand other non-storable items
Repaĺr and maitenance
Travel elpenses
Representation e4penses
Rental
Communication lines outputs
Stations service
Protection and maintenance of area
Revis ions, controls and securiý services
Technical adúsory technical s upport
Cleaning
Biological reclam ations, ecological costs
Geodetic and engineering services
Erperts er<am i nations, analyrs i s, e)eerts opi n ions, certifi cations
lnform ation technology services and advertis em ent
Erpenses for support services
E4censes for auctions
E4penses for system operation
E>,penses for CBT/ITC
Unplanned electriciý exchanges (Fskar)
Rem uneration for the actiMý of the buy,er

Audit of Financial Statements provided byauditor
AdMsory services
Taxadúsory
Other services proMded byauditor
Operating services TSCNET Services GmbH
Demolatĺons
Recharges of shared costs
Other

Total

117 772
0

17 224
-38 861

5 440
263
287
33't
254

1 470
1 112

605
112
236
í58

31

1 972
10 452

121 633
265

0
2

14 515
4 568

88
614

18
0

1 650
107

1 209
í 800

0

38 812
9 575

-'t2326
6 545

103
61

442
254

1 913
1 873
1 006

36
265
180

0
1 453

10 044
124 986

315
0
8

5 264
2 861

63
741

18
2

1 382
11

277
1 618

265 327 '197 782

The Group's costs are created mainly from regulated costs for purchase of ancillary needed to
provide system services, system operation costs, purchase of electricity for loss coverage and own
consumption, costs for international transmission and auctions and other costs needed for
transmission system operation and operation of the Group.

From 11 september 2012 the Group acts as shipping agent within Czech, Slovak and Hungarian
electricity market. Based on the request of the Romanian transmission system operďor and the
Romanian Energy Exchange, a project to expand the tripartite Market Coupling operated between
the Czech Republic, Slovakia and Hungary was launched. ln accordance with the project plan, on
19 November 2014, the four-way Market Coupling (so-called 4MMC) was launched, that is, the
operation of connected daily markets in the form of implicit allocation of cross-border capacities
between the Czech, Slovak, Hungarian and Romanian market areas. The relevant revenues and
expenses of the Group consist of payments for electricity transferred via cross-border connections
from countries where there is a surplus of electricity on the market to countries Where ľlere was a

The notes on pages 51o74 form an integral part these Statements
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shortage of electricity on the market. Relevant revenues and costs of the Group fron this activity
are recognized as sale of goods, resp. costs as costs of goods sold.

\n2022 the Group realized transactions in total amount of EUR 2973032 thousand and related
costs were EUR 2 484 845 thousand (31 December 2021: transactions in total amcarnt of EUR
1 305 716 thousand and related costs were in the amount of EUR 1 182286 thousand. According
to IFRS 15, costs related to implicit auctions in the amount of EUR 92 852 thousand anC also costs
representing a collection for the benefit of a third party amounting to EUR 582 363 thousand, were
deducted from these items as at 31 December 2022, as such collection does not form a part of the
transaction price according to IFRS 15. Revenues related to the use of the OT profile anounting to
EUR 145 826 thousand are also included in shipping (As at 31 December 2021, costs associated
with the implicit auctions amounting to EUR 55 81B thousand, costs representing colle:tion for the
benefit of a third party in the amount of EUR 107 276 thousand; revenues related to th= use of the
OT profile in the amount of EUR 135 135 thousand. Revenues from shipping with negative prices
in the amount of EUR 74 thousand and costs of shipping with negative prices in the amount of EUR
26 thousand are also included in the shipping. Costs related to congestion income in th= amount of
EUR 84 391 thousand and revenues related to congestion income in the amount of EUR 7 773
thousand are also included in shipping (as at 31 December 2021: Revenues from shipping with
negative prices in the amount of EUR 995 thousand and costs of shipping with negative prices in
the amount of EUR 754 thousand, costs related to congestion income in the amount of EUR '16 771
thousand and revenues related to congestion income in the amount of EUR 855 thousand).

The negative net balance of the Group from the shipping activity in the amount of EUR 117 772
thousand in 2022 was influenced by URSO's decision to use the excess congeslion income
resuĺting from the allocatĺon of interregional capacity achieved by the parent company in2022for
the purpose of reducing regulated tariffs. According to the regulatory rules and accounting
procedures, these revenues from regulated tariffs do not belong to the Group in 2022, rut in 2023,
in which theywill be realized (Note 17 Grants and deferred revenues, paragraph x). h 2021, the
positive balance achieved by the Group from the shĺppĺng activity in the amount of EUR 79 976
thousand, presented in note 20 Revenues.

Together with the operator of the Czech transmission network, the Group has introduced a system
to avoid simultaneous supplies of balancing energy in opposite directĺons using cĺoss-border
connections (hereĺnafter the |GCC system) on 19 January 2012. Since 2013, the operator of the
Hungarian transmission system has also participated in the system. The respective rezenues and
costs result from the volume of the balancing energy acquired within the IGCC system and fixed
prices for this balancing energy determined by a resolution adopted by the URSO. The Group
reports revenues from these activities as part of the "sale of goods" and the "costs of goods sold".
During 2022, transactions in total amount of EUR 15 223 thousand were carried out and related
costs amounted to EUR 32 156 thousand (31 December 2021: transactions totalled to EUR 6 254
thousand and the costs amounted to EUR 15 641 thousand). Revenues from negative prices from
IGCC totalled to EUR 2 453 thousand costs of negative prices from IGCC totalled to EUR 2 744
thousand (As at 31 December 202'l: Revenues from negative prices from IGCC totaled to EUR
1 647 thousand and costs of negative prices from IGCC totalled to EUR 1 835 thousanC).

22 Personnel costs
2022 2021

Wages and salaries
Other personnel costs
Pension costs-definite contribution plan

Current service cost
Past service cost
Reported actuarial loss/ (profit)

lnterest cost related to pension and other employee beneÍits
Total

22 403
2 430
I 282

476
26

-'t07
51

22311
2 636
I 107

546
19
53
83

34 56í 34755
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23 Other operating expenses

2022
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2021

lnsurance costs
Losses from sale of fixed assets and materials
Taxes and otherfees
Gifts
Creation of adjustment
Non-production com pensation
Other operating e>,penses
Total

24 Other operating income

2 162
0

206
158
675
164
708

2 198
403
234
97

2 437
227
657

4 073 6 253

2022 2021

Gain from sale of fixed assets
Gain from sale of material
Release of deferred re\€nues from grant
Contractual penaltĺes
lnsurance income
Other operating income
Total

25 Finance expense net

623
1

3 825
4 473

147

638

0

0
4 541
1 381

459
621

I 707 7 002

2022 2021

lnterest income
lnterest e)qcense from borrowings
lnterest e)qcense according IFRS 16
Foreign exchange gains
Forei gn exchange losses
Other financial epenses
Net financial expenses

1 708
-318
-18

0

-3

-253

12
-209
-17

0
0

-153

I 116 -367
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26 lncome tax expense

Reconciliation from the theoretical to the reported income tax charge is presented in :he following
table:

Year ended 31 December
2022 2021

Profit/loss before tax 93 593 202931

Theoretical income tax related to current period at21o/o

- Other income not subjectto tax(permanent)
- Non-deductible expenses (permanent)
- Tax Deductĺons
- lncrease of taxdue to charges for regulated subjects
- Deferred taxfrom temporarydifferences to which no Deferred tax

has been accounted historically
- lncome exemptfrom tax
Additional income tax

Deferred tax increase to 1 January due to increase of tax rate

lncome taxerpense forthe period

The taxcharge for the period comprises:
- Deferred taxcharge - e4cense(income) (Note 18)
Deferred taxtotal

- Special lelyfor regulated industry
- Additional income tax
- Current income taxe4cense
lncome taxtotal

19 655
-13 816
13084

0

5 821

-1 155

42 616
-726
-870

-6 803
3275

-2940

-252
28

0

-56

42
0

23 575 34328

-7 09842
42 -7 098

5 821
42

17 670

3275
28

38 123
41 426

Total tax for period

Effective tax rate 25,19o/o 16,92o/o

Deferred tax is provided, using the balance sheet liability method, on temporary differ:nces using
the basic tax rate o'f 21o/o (31 December 2021: 21%). This tax rate has been increased as at 31
December 2022by additional 4'4o/o'Íor temporary differences in fixed assets because of special levy
for regulated industry paid according to Act No. 235/2012Coll' (31 December 2021:4'4Yo)' Thĺs levy
increased the tax rate for temporary differences, which will offset by the end of 2022 related to fixed
assets only, as the value of the levy is calculated from profit before tax calculated according to the
Slovak Act on Accounting, not taking into consideration temporary differences.

27 Contingencies

(a) Taxation

Many areas of Slovak tax law (e.9. transfer-pricing regulations) have not been sufficiertly tested in
practice, so there is some uncertainty as how the tax authorities would apply them. Tre extent of
this uncertainty cannot be quantified. lt will be reduced only if legal precedents or official
interpretations are available. Neither the parent company's management, nor the subsidiary

23 533

23 575 34328
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management is aware of any circumstance that may give rise to future material expense in this
respect.

(b) Regulation and Iiberalization ln energy industry

Regulatory framework for the electricity market in the Slovak Republic

Based on the current legislation, the electricity market in the Slovak Republic is liberalized and
allows free selection of electricity supplier for all customers.

Activities of the Group are subject to regulation by URSO

(c) Litlgation

The plaintiff Lumius Slovakia, s. r. o. 'ln liquidation'claims to reopen the court proceedirgs in which
the plaintiff claimed the payment in amount of EUR 3 792 188.0í with accessories be:ause of the
unreasonable beneficiation and damages by the illegitimate charging of the system Services on the
cross-border transmission. The plaintiff paid to the defendant following the Contract of lransmission
of electricity through the interconnector from 16 January 2008 in accordance the legislation at the
time. According to the opinion of the plaintiff, the illegitimate charging consists in the fact that such
a fee is in the conflict with the European Union law' The Bratislava ll Dĺstrict Court dbmissed the
claim, the plaintĺff did not make an appeal against the judgment and the judgment b=came final.
Because of the Court of Justice of the European Union evaluated the charge as conflicted with the
European Union law in Case C-305/17, the plaintiff claims the reopening of the court proceedings
within the statutory period. At the hearing on 20 May 2021,the court rejected the motion to reopen
the proceedings, the plaintiff filed an appeal against the judgment, and the Group submitted a
statement on the plaintiffs appeal. on November 14,2022, the Regional Court ĺn Bratislava annulled
the first-instance judgment of the Bratislava ll District Court and returned the matter to :his court for
further proceedings as the justification of the first-instance judgment does not contain reasons that
would clearly and convincingly represent an explanation of the conclusion adopted by the court that
there is no personal or material connection between the proceedings for the restoration of which the
plaintiff is demanding and the decision of the Court of Justice of the European Unior in Case C-
305117, thus the decision of the Court of Justice of the EU is not binding for the parties tothis dispute.
At the hearing on February 7,2023, the court did not make a decision on the matter, acjourning the
hearing to March 23,2023.

(d) Bank guarantees

As at 31 December 2022,Lhe Group records issued bank guarantees in the amount of iUR 38 000
thousand to third parties.

28 Gommltments

(a) Futurecapitalcommitments

The Group has contractual obligations under the contracts for the purchase of non-current assets
entered into before 31 December 2022, lhe performance of which is scheduled only after
31 December 2022. The total obligation under the contracts amount to EUR 39 730 thousand (2021:
EUR 21 094 thousand). The Capital expenditures are related primarily to the Renewal of secondary
technology R 400 kV Bošáca - exchange of protections and RlS innovation, with tran,sition of ESt
SuČany to remote control, with construction of change of conductors, insulation of 400 kV line
KriŽovany - state border sR / ČR, with innovation of measuring sets, with legislative upgrade of
trading system Damas Energy, with the change of connection of Fortischem, a. s. to the ľansmission
system in ES BystriČany.

The Group has approved a Capital expenditure budget'Íor 2023 in the amount of HJR80 158
thousand (2022capex budget: EUR 58 680 thousand).
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The Capital expenditures are related primarily to the Renewal of secondary technology R 400 kV
BoŠáca - exchange of protections and RlS innovation, with change of conductors and insulation of
lines, to the ĺnsulation oÍ 220 kV line V071 Lemešany _ Vojany, to the remote contrd in electrical
stations and ICT systems and trading systems.

It is expected that both internal and external funds will be used to finance these Capital
expenditures.

(b) Future operating lease commitments - Group as lessee

Using the database of contracts, the Group selected contracts where it has the role of a lessee. For
these contracts, it assessed, whether they are compliant with the IFRS '16 conditions ard therefore
whether are to be reported based on that standard. Reports, for which the Group applied the
optional derogation, are listed below. The Group reports neither the right of use of asset nor the
liability from lease for all types of lease contracts with the lease period up to 12 mcnths. Costs
related to these leases are reported in financial accounts as operating costs evenly over lease
periods.

The Group has also applied an optional exemption and reports neither the right of use of asset nor
the liability from lease in relation to lease contracts where the value of the leased asset is clearly
lower than EUR 5 000. When determining the estimated value of an asset, the Group assumes that
it is a new asset. lf the asset value cannot be determined reliably, the optional exempt on shall not
be applied.

The Group has the following future minimum lease instalments in relation to the abore operating
lease contracts:

31 December
2022

3ĺ December
2021

Due within 1 1rear
Due in 2 to 5 years
Due after 5 years
Total

Due within l year

Due in 2 to 5 years
Due after 5 years
Total

5858
0
0

0

0

58 58

The Group has also entered into an operating lease for an unlimited period of time witl' a possibility
of termination wĺth a 3-month termination period. The annual lease payments amount to EUR 9
thousand (31 December 2021: EUR I thousand), The main items include the lease of
telecomm unications routes.

c) Future operating lease commitments - Group as Iessor

The Group leases out mainly lines and optic fiber cables.

The Group has the following future minimum lease instalments in relation to the opeĺating lease
contracts:

3í December 3í December
2022 2021

346
1 260
1 526

294
057
534

3 132 2 885

The Group has also entered into an operating lease for an unlimited period of time, fcr which the
annual lease payments is in the amount of EUR 431 thousand (31 Decernber 2021:
EUR 385 thousands).
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The Group leases 2x11OkV power lines ESt Lemešany - Es ss Košice from suppo.ting point in
Bukovec to supporting point in Lemešany in length of 'ĺ8'678 km. Lease expires in 50 7ears, rent is
calculated every year according to capital, investment and operating costs. Annual rent for 2023
amounts to EUR 329 thousand (31 December 2021: year 2022: EUR 276 thousanc). The basic
component of the rent will be paid to lessee for the time of 20 years and operating component of the
rent will be paid to lessor for the time of 50 years. The minimal lease payment incluces the basic
component of the rent in the amount of EUR 301 thousand annually (31 December 2021:
EUR 251 thousand).

29 Contingent assets

Participants of spot electricity market and deviation settlement enclose the contract with banks on
bank guarantees in favour of the Group that the Group has the right to use in case of insolvency.
The amount of received bank guarantees as at 31 December 2022 is EUR 317 912 thousand (as
at31 December2021: EUR 224513 thousand).

30 Cash generated from operations

Note 2022 2021

ProÍit before income tax

Adjustments for:

Depreciation of properý, plantand equipment
Depreciation of non-current i ntangible as sets
Negative rewluation
Changes in proúsions for receiwbles

(Gain) / loss from disposal of properly, plant and
equipment
lnterest income / epenses net

Net movements in provisions

Other non-cas h trans actions

Changes in working capital:

lnventories (gross)
Trade and other receirables
Shortterm fi nancial assets

Trade and other payables, deferred re\€nues
Gash generated from operations

93 593 202931

5

6

5,6

11

23,24

25
19

61 858
6 977

0

675

-623

166

7 413
-255 000

268 770

64 371
7 147

5 068
2 437

403

-239

-101 319
0

209 464

-1372
-825
-50

214
-5 169

-15

ln the consolidated cash flow statement, proceeds from sale of assets are as follows

Note 2022

181 582 385 293

2021

Net book amount
Profit / (loss) on disposal of asset
Proceeds fom disposal ofasset

23,24
2',l

623
804

-403

644 401
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31 Related party transactions

Parties related to the Group include its sole shareholder, Joint Allocation Office, S. A. and TSCNET
Services, GmbH and key management personnel of the Group or the shareholder.

The National Property Fund (FNM), an entity fully owned by the Slovak Republic tĺ.as the sole
shareholder of the parent company until I October 2012. Since 2 October 2012, the sole
shareholder is the Ministry of Finance of Slovak Republic.

Transactions with entities that are owned or controlled directly or indirectly by the State are realized
in accordance with the prevailing regulatory principles.

The Ministry of Economy of Slovak Republic, an entity fully owned by the Slovak Replblĺc, is the
51 % shareholder of Západoslovenské energetika, a. s', Východoslovenská energetika Holding, a'
s. and Stredoslovenská energetika, a. s.

Západoslovenská distribučná, a. s., Západoslovenská energetika - Energ a, a' s',
Východoslovenská energetika, a. s., Východoslovenská distribučná, a.s. and Strecoslovenská
distribučná, a. s. are 100% subsidiaries of these companies.

As at 31 December 2022, the outstanding balances with joint venture, state-controlled entities and
government bodies were as follows:

Value
adjustment to

Boss amount trade and Trade and
oftrade Other other other

receivables receivables receivables payables

Slovenské elektrárne, a.s'

Sl olens ké elektrá rne_en ergetické s l uäy, s. r'o.

Západos lovenská distribučná, a's.

Západoslovenská energetika - Energia, a.s.

ZSE Elektrárne, s, r. o.

[ichodos lol'ens ká energetika, a.s.

Východos lolens ká distribučná, a's.

Stredos lovens ká energetika, a.s.

Stredoslolens ká distribučná' a.s,

Stredos lovens ká energetika Project
Development, s. r. o.

MH Teplárenskýholding' a. s.

Žilinská teplárenská, a. s.

]t4artinská teplárenská, a. s.

Zlolenská teplárenská, a. s.

JointAllocation Office, S. A.

Vodohos podárs ka výstavba' š.p.

Slol'enský plynárenský priempel, a. s.

Bratislallská teplárenská, a. s.

TSCENT

399

536

2820

5 323

0

2 914

1 305

4 359

1 836

-27 930

-746

-79122

-6 364

-280

-1762

-29 845

-2217

-69 939

-1 251

-1 006

0

0

0

-18298

-9 474

-4 818

0

-89

0

135

0

0

0

18765

80

9 553

0

0

17

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

309

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0
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The income and expense items with joint venture, state-controlled entities and government bodies
for the year ended 31 December 2022 were as follows:

Sales of Rrrchase of
services services

Slovenské elektrárne, a's.
Slorcnské elektrárne-Energetické sluäy, s. r. o

Západoslolenská energetika, a. s.

Západos lovenská distribučná, a's.

Západoslovenská energetika _ Energia, a.s.

ZSE Elektrárne' s' r. o.

Východos lovenská energetika, a.s.

Východoslovens ká energetika Holding, a's.
\Áýchodos lorcns ká distribučná, a.s.

Stredos lowns ká energetika, a's.

Stredos lorcns ká distribučná, a.s'
MH Teplárenský holding, a. s.

Žilinstá teplárenská, a. s'
Martinská teplárenská, a' s'
Zlolenská teplárenská, a. s.

JointAllocatĺon office, S. A
TSCNET, GmbH

Vodohos podárs ka výstalba, Š. p'

Bratislawká teplárenská, a' s.

Slovens ký plynárens ký priem ;ĺsel, a. s.

-1 394 822

18 863

0

-10 058

743 448

1 001

167 114

0

1 363

499 298

-37 623

-3 188

-30

2

15

53 022
0

-92147

0

60 104

-73 298

0

0

-148

-777

-635

-1

0

-65

-6

-365

-4 529

-264

-292

0

-412 960

-1674
-5 424

0

-4 569

Positive values in the service sales column result from the fact that costs and revenues are reported
on a net basis, as required in notes 20 Revenues and 21 Consumed materials and services
according to IFRS 15. ln the given case, revenues from transactions carried out by individual
companies were higher than the related costs, alternatively the costs were higher than the realized
transactions of the companies in the sale of services.
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As at 31 December 2021, the outstanding balances with joint venture, state-controlled entities and
government bodies were as follows:

Value
adjustmentto

Boss amount trade and Trade and
oftrade Other other other

receivables receivables receivables payables

Slovenské elektrárne, a.s.

Slole ns ké elektrárne-energetické s l uŽby, s. r'o

Západos lolenská distribučná, a.s.

Západoslolenská energetika - Energia, a's.

ZSE Elektrárne, s. r. o.

Vtýchodos lovens ká energetika, a.s.

Východoslowns ká distribučná, a.s.

Stredos lovens ká energetika, a.s.

Stredoslownská distribučná, a.s'

MH Teplárenský holding, a. s.

Žilinsra teplárenská, a. s'

Martinská teplárenská, a. s.

Zlolenská teplárenská, a. s.

Joint Allocation Office, S. A.

Vodohos podárs ka výstavba, š.p.

Slovens ký plynárenský priempel, a. s.

Bratislalská teplárenská, a. s.

620

-227

2 886

3238
63

3 630

I 176

7 092

2048
5

1

57

14

2 175

199

I 210

0

-37 006

-440

-12 679

-4 654

-77

-1 597

24

-4249

-53 522

-713

-208

-367

-74

-7 833

-3 146

-1

-9 919

22

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

904

0
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The income and expense items with joint venture, state-controlled entities and government bodĺes
for the year ended 31 December 2021were as follows:

Sales of
services

Purchase of
services

Slorcns ké elektrárne' a.s.

Slorcnské elektrárne-Energetické sluäy, s. r. o.

Západoslorcnská energetika, a. s'
Západoslovenská distribučná, a.s'
Západoslovenská energetika - Energia, a.s.

ZSE Elektrárne, s. r. o'

\ýchodos lovenská energetika, a's.
Východoslovenská energetika Holding' a.s.

\ýchodoslovenská distribučná, a.s.

Stredos lorcns ká energetika, a.s.

Stredos lorens ká distribučná, a.s.

MH Teplárenskýholding' a. s.

Žilinská teplárenská, a. s.

Martinská teplárenská, a. s.

Zwlenská teplárenská, a. s.

JointAllocation Office, S. A
TSCNET, GmbH
Vodohospodárska výstalba, š. p.

Bratislavská teplárenská, a' s.

Slovenský plynárens ký priemysel, a. s'

-143 428

29 967

0

40 771

204 164
1 199

109 327

0

24 305
1 55 826

-30 778

-3 766

-1828
-3 682

116

-61 638

0

-2 012
-1 860

72 893

-444 084

3

0

-177

208 295
-403

39 550

0

-2

80 433

-439

-2764
-547

-1259
0

-5 799

-1438
-49 791

0

-117 531

Positive values in the service sales column result from the fact that costs and re\enues are
reported on a net basis, as required in notes 20 Revenues and 21 Consumed mďerials and
services according to IFRS 15. ln the given case, revenues from transactions carried out by
individual companies were higher than the related costs, eventually costs was higher than the
realized transactions of the companies in the sale of services.

Key management personnel compensation

Salaries and bonuses paid to the parent company's management, directors and other members of
top management for the year ended 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021, are a follows:

Yearended Yearended
3í December2022 3í December202í

Salaries and short{erm employee beneÍits

Total
1 339 1 776

í 339
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32 Events after the reporting period

After the date on which the financial statements are prepared, no events have occurred that would
require adjustments or additional disclosures in the financial statements and notes to:he financial
statements.

Declaration of compliance

The Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 202. prepared
in accordance with lnternational Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the Eurcpean Union
were prepared and authorized for issue on '15 March 2023,

lng. Peter Dovhun
Chairman of the Board of Directors

lng. Ján oráč
Person responsible for preparation of the Consolidated
Financial Statements

lng. Jaroslav Vach, MBA
Member of the Board of Eirectors

/
\_

i'ó. nuié." x"iä'"*ä
Person responsible for bookkeeping
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